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The launch of the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa (PRASA) in March 2009 
brought forth a new era in passenger transport that saw the former South African 
Commuter Corporation (SARCC) transformed into PRASA.  Metrorail, Shosholoza 
Meyl, Autopax (Translux and City to City long distance bus service) and Intersite 
Property Management Services formerly under SARCC and Transnet were 
incorporated as part of PRASA. PRASA then established PRASA Corporate Real 
Estate Solutions (PRASA CRES in 2010) to manage its station facilities with Intersite 
Asset Investments focusing on exploiting PRASA assets. 

The consolidation of the entities followed a Cabinet decision of 01 December 2004 
which was done in order to offer rail passengers integrated services that prioritise 
customer needs, provide better mobility and accessibility to transport in pursuit of a 
better life for all. 

PRASA as a group of companies is geared to operate more efficiently and in a coordinated 
manner as follows: 

• PRASA Corporate Office:
  The PRASA Group, through its Corporate Office, is the “Owner” of the Assets transferred to it by the Minister 

under the Legal Succession Act (as amended) and therefore performs a major asset management function. The 
performance of PRASA Corporate Office is one of the Critical Success Factors for the new strategy. 

The key Functions of the PRASA Corporate Office are as follows: 

(1) Develop and Drive Corporate Strategy
(2) Planning of Capacity Requirements to meet Long-Term Demands
(3) Life-Cycle Asset Management and Asset Development
(4) Manage the Capital Investment Programme (Infrastructure Development)
(5) Develop Group Corporate Policies (Finance, HR, ICT and Supply Chain)
(6) Develop the Budget and Plans to Meet Short-Term Funding Requirements of the entire PRASA Group
(7)  Develop Funding Models and a Borrowing Plan to Meet Long-Term Funding/Investment Requirements of the PRASA 

Group
(8) Implement the Integrated Management System (SHEQ and Universal Access)
(9)  Ensure Good Corporate Governance (Risk Management, Systems of Internal Controls, Financial Reporting and 

Security of Assets)

• PRASA Business Units (includes divisions and subsidiaries)
 - PRASA Rail Operations (a Division of PRASA)
 - PRASA Corporate Real Estate Solutions (a Division of PRASA)
 - PRASA Technical (a Divisions of PRASA)
 - Intersite Asset Investments (a Subsidiary of PRASA)
 - Autopax Long Distance Bus Services (a Subsidiary of PRASA)

All of the above will, on behalf of the PRASA Group, operate and maintain assets under their control as well as implement 
decisions, strategies and policies approved by the Board and EXCO of PRASA. 
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The Head Offices of Business Units (PRASA Rail Operations (PRO), PRASA CRES, PRASA Technical, Intersite and Autopax) 
play a critical role in these institutional arrangements. They are responsible for: 

(1) Putting in place systems 
(2) Develop suitable strategies 
(3) Set the service standards 
(4) Provide support for Operations 
(5) Ensure implementation of policies and decisions at the PRASA Board 
(6) Monitor and evaluate the performance of these respective operations and 
(7) Ensure that quality transport services are delivered at all times. 

• Operations
  The operating units (i.e. Metrorail Regions, PRASA CRES Regions, Mainline Passenger Services (ShosholozaMeyl), 

Technical depots and workshops) are responsible for the following: 

(1) Plan and manage day-to-day operations 
(2) Schedule transport services 
(3) Maintain assets (rolling stock and facilities) 
(4) Collect fare or rental income 
(5) Provide security for passengers 
(6) Implement operational safety plans 

PRASA BBE partners for New Rolling Stock Manufacturer 
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OUR MANDATE Legislative Mandate of PRASA
Legal Succession Act:

PRASA, as the implementation arm of the National Department of Transport, the sole shareholder, is primarily focused 
on the mandate contained in the Legal Succession Act of the South African Transport Services (“SATS”)  Act of 1989 as 
amended in November 2008.

The main objective and main business of PRASA is to:

A – ensure that, at the request of the Department of Transport, rail commuter services are provided within, to and 
from the Republic in the public interest, and

B – provide, in consultation with the Department of Transport, for a long haul passenger rail and bus service within, 
to and from the Republic in terms of the principles set out in section 4 of the National Land Transport Transition Act, 
2000 (Act no 22 of 2000).

The second objective and secondary business of PRASA is that PRASA shall generate income from the exploitation of 
assets acquired by it.  A further requirement is that, in carrying out its objective and business, PRASA shall have due 
regard for key Government, social, economic and transport policy objectives.

As a public entity, Government initiatives remain a strategy driver for PRASA. This is manifested through legislation, 
government policies and strategies such as: 

 National Transport Policy 

 Public Transport  Strategy

 Legislation such as the National Land Transport Act 

 Green Paper on Rail 

 Economic Strategy and Job creation initiatives

COSAS Career Day

11

NON-REGULATORY INFORMATION APASSENGER RAIL AGENCY OF SOUTH AFRICA ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13



VISION

MISSION

TO BE THE LEADER
IN PASSENGER TRANSPORT SOLUTIONS.

To strive for High-Quality and Sustainable 
Passenger Services through Service 
Excellence, Innovation and Modal Integration 

Five Principles underpin the PRASA Vision and Mission:- 

Mobility

PRASA shall contribute to sustainable public transport solutions through providing high-quality passenger 
services founded on an integrated network of mobility routes. 

Accessibility

PRASA shall provide quality rail, bus and property management services that enable individuals and 
communities to access socio-economic opportunities and contribute to a better quality of life for the people 
as a whole. 

Modal Integration

Reframing the basis of business delivery, favouring innovation, seamless integration and partnerships. 

Service Excellence

A deep commitment to superior performance that is safe, reliable and affordable, provide a dignified travel 
experience that makes a lasting impression, and builds brand loyalty – both internally (employees) and 
externally (customers) – that adds benefit to the passenger. 

Sustainability

A focus on sustainable development in business that considers not just the financial ‘bottom line’ of 
prosperity, but the environmental quality and social equity. 

01
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03
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VALUES

The values that guide PRASA, underpinning the performance ethos of the organisation have been derived from the 
outcome of workshops carried out across the Group. The workshops involved participation of all business units and all 
levels of staff. The premise of the derived values is to deliver service excellence, productive staff and business growth. 

The values are – 

	Fairness and Integrity

 Treating our customers and our colleagues the same as we would like to be treated.

	Service Excellence 

 Provide the kind of services that meet and exceed customer expectation.

  Performance Driven
  Developing the ability to venture into new breakthrough areas of opportunity whilst offering quality products to our 

customers. 

 Safety

 Ensuring our customers and colleagues enjoy their journey and arrive safely and refreshed. 

 Communication

 Sharing information with our customers and colleagues in an open and honest way. 

 Teamwork 

 Working together with our customers to achieve a common goal and recognising each other’s worth. 

13
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STRATEGIC ROLE PRASA STRATEGY
THE STRATEGY OF PRASA SEEKS TO 
CREATE A MODERN PUBLIC ENTITY BY 
2017 THAT WOULD BE ABLE TO DELIVER 
QUALITY PASSENGER SERVICES ON A MORE 
SUSTAINABLE BASIS. 
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The Strategy of PRASA seeks to create a modern public entity by 2017 that would be able to deliver quality passenger 
services on a more sustainable basis.  This would be achieved through: (1) investing in new capacity such as modern trains, 
signaling and telecommunications systems, infrastructure, transit orientated developments and new generation stations, 
access control and other operating systems, (2) unlocking the value of the assets such as the PRASA telecommunications 
network and the Property Portfolio and (3) effecting key Operational Efficiencies for improved Service Delivery as well 
as the Modernisation of Operations through the introduction of technologies in critical areas such as ticketing, cabling, 
booking systems, energy regeneration and many others. 

The sustainability and efficiency of a transformed and modern PRASA the strategy seeks to create would primarily be 
defined by following attributes: 

• Ability to generate adequate cash from its operations and assets to fully meet its operational funding requirements
• A growing property portfolio that contributes to funding and future investment requirements 
• Quality facilities within new generation stations
• Significant rail share (35% - 40%) of the passenger per km in public transport
• Modern rail infrastructure that delivers reliability and passenger comfort
• Metrorail becoming the backbone of metropolitan transport systems
• Frequencies of 3 – 5 minutes of metro trains in the peak period 
• Frequent public transport services in the rural areas 
• A vibrant long-distance rail service capable of competing with road and rail travel 
• Operations that meets modern safety and quality standards 

The most immediate goal for PRASA is to bring about visible and short-term improvements that change commuter and 
passenger travel experiences in South Africa. Key to achieving this is to sustain current passenger rail operations in South 
Africa and in particular, getting Metrorail to work for its customers and the cities it serves. In its current form, Metrorail 
continues to struggle to deliver quality and reliable train services resulting in customer expectations not being met. PRASA 
remains however committed to delivering quality-services with increased frequencies, safe operations, ensuring personal 
security for its passengers and a significant increase in patronage (passenger per kilometer travelled) on PRASA’s rail and 
bus systems. 

Investment in rail is however of a long-term nature and is linked to emerging long-term global trends. Since its 
establishment, PRASA has been working to deliver on its mandate as the Government’s primary agent for the delivery of 
integrated public transport services. 

PRASA’s Strategic Plan is presented at two levels: 

•  Individual Regional Plans covering the most populated Provinces where suburban rail is provided (e.g. Eastern Cape, 
KwaZulu-Natal, Western Cape and Gauteng) and a plan for the Long-Distance passenger market (including any specific 
transport needs in the remaining Provinces in the country).

•  An overarching National Strategic Plan that brings together the individual plans and prioritised corridors and options 
for change nationally. It also includes key actions or changes that need to be taken by PRASA to implement the Strategic 
Plan.

15
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LEGAL
OPERATING
STRUCTURE

 

DIVISIONS

PRASA RAIL 
OPERATIONS

PRASA TECHNICAL

MAINLINE 
PASSENGER 

SERVICES

Name
Title

The legal operating structure comprises 
the Board of Control, a Corporate Head 
Office (PRASA), three Divisions (PRASA Rail 
Operations, PRASA Technical and PRASA 
Corporate Real Estate Solutions) and two 
subsidiaries (Autopax and Intersite).
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SUBSIDIARIES
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CHAIRMAN’S 
STATEMENT

At PRASA we are very clear about our primary mission of providing a quality public transport that is safe, reliable, affordable, 
sustainable, predictable and accessible to all South Africans. Public transport in general and rail in particular, should be 
the transport of first choice. It is the public transport that should, in the shortest possible time, connect our people to 
areas of economic activity and work. The marginalised communities must also be provided with an effective transport 
service, especially rail, to enable them to access economic opportunities which in most cases are in urban areas. Transport 
should be used to break down the apartheid divide created over the years. Rural communities must have similar transport 
facilities.

While we strive to achieve these broad and noble socio-economic objectives we are alive to the challenges that lie ahead. 
These include the following:

1. The ageing rolling stock whose average age is more than 40 years.
2. The limited rolling stock as a result of many years of under investment in the sector.
3. Obsolete and outdated signalling system which makes the movement of trains   unsafe and less predictable.
4. The infrastructure which is very old. 
5. The burning down of the trains and sabotaging of cables.
6. Lack of engineering and related skills, to mention but a few.
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However, PRASA, the Department of Transport and National Treasury have responded to this need 
by providing necessary resources to, amongst other things, buy new trains, (PRASA’s Rolling Stock 
Fleet Renewal Programme), modernise signalling, provide extra security to our real estate and rolling stock. In the 
last financial year we started with a process of procuring new rolling stock to the tune of R 51 billion in the coming ten 
years.  When procuring the new trains we were at all times conscious of the fact that this should not just be about buying 
trains, but we should get positive externalities from this huge investment. At all times we knew that this should address 
the triple challenges that our country is facing, viz. Inequality, poverty and unemployment. 

When the then Minister of Transport, Honourable Dikobe Ben Martins, MP announced the Gibela Consortium on 5 December, 
2012, and the current Minister of Transport, Honourable Dipuo Peters announced the BEE component of the Consortium 
on 01 August 2013, after a rigorous evaluation process, we were very clear about the proposed socio-economic outcomes 
of the programme. These include:

1.  The delivery of 3 600 vehicles based on 6 vehicle units to PRASA in the next coming ten years commencing in the 
2015/16 fiscal year.

2.  The construction of a factory facility to manufacture trains in South Africa. We do not want to import trains, because that 
is equivalent to exporting job opportunities.

3. The guarantee of 69 percent local content value within the second year of the contract.
4. An undertaking to spend R32.8 billion on subcontracting Black empowered companies.
5. The creation of 65 000 direct and indirect jobs over the project term.

There is no doubt that this rolling stock renewal programme will go a long way in
revitalising the railway engineering and related industries in South Africa.

Companies which are experts on railways, finance, legal and BBBEE were employed 
by PRASA to assist with the procurement process. Furthermore, a Probity Officer, a 
firm of Auditors was appointed to look as to whether we had complied with all the 
requirements of the project of this nature. I am very happy that this process was given 
a clean bill of health, and indeed the best companies won. In that regard I would like 
to thank my PRASA colleagues,  who spent long  hours to ensure that we deliver on 
time, and give hope to our people that the better future is just around the corner.  The 
team of experts involved in this process provided invaluable expertise in ensuring that 
South African people get value for their money.

Penultimately, I would like to thank previous Ministers of Transport, including Ministers Jeff Radebe, Sbu Ndebele and 
Ben Martins for having ensured that government invest in the buying of new trains. We also thank the Honourable Dipuo 
Peters, MP, and the current Minister of Transport, for having hit the ground running and immediately providing leadership 
in this matter. The patron of Women in Rail, the Deputy Minister of Transport, Honourable Sindisiwe Lydia Chikunga, 
ensured that this project also benefits women, who under apartheid experienced a triple oppression. The Chairperson of 
the Transport Portfolio Committee, Honourable Ruth Bhengu deserves a special mention for her relentless championing 
of public transport. She did that with the unwavering support of her colleagues in the Transport Portfolio Committee. 
They were all clear that the buying of trains should be done without compromising on the broader positive impact on the 
economy of our country.

Lastly, it is a great pleasure for me to pay tribute to the Board of PRASA, the FCIP chairperson, Dr Bridgette Gasa and her 
Committee, the different Management Committees which dealt with this matter, the Group CEO, Mr. Lucky Montana, his 
Executive Team, the Trade Union Leadership and our employees for their commitment to the growth and success of PRASA. 
It is only when we all put our shoulders to the wheel that we can create a better South Africa for our children. PRASA is 
committed to delivering on our mandate, that of providing a better public transport to our people. 

Sfiso Buthelezi
Chairman

THE BOARD OF PRASA 
IS ALSO VERY PROUD 
OF THE INTEGRITY OF 
THE PROCUREMENT 
PROCESS.
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GROUP CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S 
OVERVIEW

Almost five(5) years since its establishment as a transport public entity responsible for the delivery of passenger services 
and in support of Government’s socio-economic objectives, the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa (PRASA) is making 
huge strides in its modernisation drive and contributing to the creation of a modern, decent public transport system for the 
people of South Africa. The 2012/13 Financial Year will go down in history as the year in which PRASA 
formally embarked on and completed the procurement process for the acquisition of a new fleet 
for its Metrorail services (Rolling Stock Fleet Renewal Programme). This was the year which also saw an accelerated 
drive for the delivery of the state-of-the art signalling (electronic interlocking) systems as well as other infrastructure 
modernisation initiatives. South Africa should be proud of the professional and transparent manner in which PRASA, working 
with various Government Departments and other public entities, had handled the rigorous and competitive procurement 
process for the acquisition of new trains for Metrorail. The appointment of a Probity Officer to oversee the process and 
ensure the integrity of the process is protected at all times was in itself a major breakthrough in public procurement. 
Infact,the appointment of a Probity Officer has been positive for PRASA and perhaps the lessons could be accepted as an 
integral part of future public procurement for significant projects. Through this procurement, PRASA is acquiring in the first 
10 years, 3 600 of its planned 7 224 new modern coaches, which will constitutes the next generation of commuter trains 
that will define public transport for South African cities over a period of 40 years at least, starting from 2015. 

Total Revenue 
(excluding government 
subsidy) grew by
R549 m (16.3%)
from R2.6 billion
to R3.1 billion
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Whilst the focus is on the modernization of the passenger rail system, 
PRASA has done extraordinary things with the current, old railway system 
and continues to implement innovative strategies to sustain and improve on 
current rail operations. Such strategies are implemented under the auspices of the Five Point Plan to improve Metrorail 
services across the country, and these are proving to be delivering results. Today, we can say proudly that Metrorail services 
are improving, being expanded and getting more reliable and predictable than ever before. 

A significant highlight of the 2012/13 highlights is the extent to which PRASA has been successful in driving suitable 
strategies to unlock the value of its assets. This is a critical part of a Board approved strategy to build a financially 
sustainable entity which is capable of delivering quality passenger services over the coming years.

Below are the key highlights in the performance of PRASA for 2012/13 Financial Year. A careful analysis of the information 
indicates that this is a public entity geared towards delivering on its legal mandate, key transport objectives and Government 
socio-economic goals. 

ROLLING STOCK FLEET RENEWAL PROGRAMME

PRASA formally issued its Request for Proposals (RFP) for its new metro fleet on 19 April 2012. This allowed bidders who 
had bought the documents to attend the Briefing Session arranged by PRASA, interact with the bid document and could offer 
PRASA mark-ups of any of the RFP and Draft Project Agreements, a process that unfolded until end of September 2012. 
This rigorous, fair, transparent and competitive process culminated in the selection in December 2012 of a preferred bidder, 
the Alstom-led Gibela Rail Transportation Consortium. This was a significant moment in the process of the acquisition of 
a new rolling stock, which will serve as a catalyst for the transformation of public transport in South Africa as well as the 
rail engineering sector of the economy.

INTRODUCTION A total of 579 coaches 
delivered as part of the 
Accelerated Rolling 
Stock Programme
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

In addition, PRASA issued in December 2012 an Invitation to Participate (ITP) inviting B-BBEE Equity Partners to bid for 
30% of the equity in the Project Company. This was important to ensure meaningful black empowerment but also ensuring 
that the type of B-BBEE is one that is consistent with and supportive of the long-term goals of Government’s Industrial 
Policy Action Plan (IPAPII). It is important that the B-BBEE Equity Partners take a long-term view and ensure that they 
become true partners in the revitalising and transformation of South Africa’s Rail Engineering Sector.

The broad-based nature of the empowerment process was also captured with the provision for two employee share trusts 
and an education trust. Unlike some critical and cynical voices claiming that B-BBEE does not work, PRASA confirmed 
that empowerment of the black majority, women, youth and the disabled remains a critical Government Policy. Infact, the 
empowerment of our black people under B-BBEE policy remains a historic necessity with its basis in the Constitution of the 
Republic. PRASA proved that the country should still pursue B-BBEE but ensure that it is implemented in a manner that 
effectively supports broader Government social and economic objectives, in this particular case the Industrial Policy Action 
Plan (IPAP2) imperatives and other long-term economic goals that Government has set itself.

The Salient Features of the Programme are as follows:

• The total contract value for the manufacture and supply of the new rolling stock fleet is R51 billion.

• PRASA will receive 3 600 new vehicles over the 10 year term of the Manufacture and Supply Agreement (“MSA”);

•  PRASA will also obtain the technical spares and agreed services, over the 18 year term of the Technical Support and 
Spares Supply Agreement (“TSSSA”);

•  A Local Factory for the production and assembly of the new trains will be constructed and is to be operational by July 
2016;

•  A Product Evolution Facility, which is to be the design authority for the new trains, is to be completed and operational 
by 2018. This Facility is a critical and direct mechanism for the transfer of Technology and Skills to South Africa. In this 
respect, 80% of the employees in the Product Evolution Facility are to be South Africans;

•  PRASA has procured commitments on the Programme related to local content, which is to include local manufacture, 
revitalization of the rail industry and creation of much needed jobs, under the Economic Development pillar of the 
Programme.  The commitments on the Programme include the following:

 • Local Content of 69% from year 2 of the MSA;
 • An un-weighted average of 77% Local Content for the TSSSA;

 • 90% of the jobs to be created on the Programme will be for South African citizens;

 • 80% of the jobs to be created on the Programme will be for Black People;

 • 60% of the jobs to be created on the Programme will be for the Youth;

 • 25% of the jobs to be created by the Programme will be for Women;

• The effective ownership by Black People in Gibela is 41.3%;

•  1.75% of the value of the contracts (both the MSA and TSSSA) will be spent on skills development, with a specific 
emphasis on rail sector skills. In addition, 1.28% of that will be spent on the development of skills of Black People;

•  There will be subcontracting by empowered entities, small, medium and micro enterprises (“SMMEs”) and Black 
Women;

•  1.2% of the value of the contracts (both the MSA and TSSSA) will be spent on the development of enterprises which are 
in the rail sector; and

•  0.435% of the value of the contract (both the MSA and TSSSA) will be spent on various community projects, which will 
include increasing the level of education and improving the quality of life of beneficiary communities.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

REAL ESTATE STRATEGY

PRASA embarked on a strategic review of its property portfolio as part of a broader strategy to sustain the business and 
meet its funding and investment requirements for the future.This strategic review has highlighted the types and potential 
of PRASA’s various properties in its portfolio, which resulted in the development of a new Real Estate Strategy adopted by 
the PRASA Board in December 2012. The strategy provides for key interventions to unlock the value of the PRASA Property 
Portfolio, including the pursuance of a Strategic Equity Partner (SEP) in the property space, commercialisation at major 
stations for income-generation purposes, new developments to grow commercial properties as well as the buy-back of 
certain development leases.

The Board approved R450 million for PRASA to buy-back some of the high-yielding Development Leases, as part of the 
comprehensive strategy to increase the income base of PRASA over the next 10 
years. The full implementation of the Real Estate Strategy will however require an 
additional R1.5 billion over the next 3 years.

BALANCE SHEET RESTRUCTURING

Revaluation of Investment Property

PRASA identified properties which were separately viewed from operations and considered as commercial in nature. In 
order for PRASA to adequately reflect the value of its identified commercial properties, these were revalued to reflect their 
appropriate market value in line with established valuation and property practices. Value of investment property increased 
in the 2012/13 Financial Year by 175% from R924mil to R2.5bn.

The commercial properties on the PRASA Balance Sheet now more accurately reflect the real value in commercial terms 
and will be revalued annually to continue to reflect their appropriate market value. It also means that income generated 

from these commercial properties can be better benchmarked against 
industry standards for similar properties. The re-valued properties 
now also reflect disclosures in line with IAS 40 (Investment Properties), 
meaning that PRASA is better presenting its assets in terms of 
International Accounting Standards.

Autopax Recapitalisation

Since being consolidated into the PRASA Group, Autopax has acquired 520 buses (annual current loan installment R79.2 
million) and incurred lease commitments on a further 50 buses (annual installment payments of R32.4 million) to supply 
transport services for the 2010 Soccer World Cup event that took place during 2010. The buses purchased at some R1.3 
billion were in part financed through a capital grant of R797 million received from National Treasury, the balance externally 
financed through Mercedes Benz Financial Services S.A.

Autopax successfully supplied transport solutions to the 2010 FIFA Soccer World Cup event but incurred a R80.0 million 
loss in the process with a resultant impact on cash reserves and business results.

The premise upon which the debt was based was that Autopax with its new fleet of busses would seek and receive additional 
permits to operate into new income generating routes and that this income generated would be sufficient to repay the debt 
taken on as mentioned above.

Autopax has not received the permits to operate on the routes anticipated at the time of making the debt funding decision in 
2010 and this means that it has been unable to generate the additional income anticipated and has therefore been funding 
the repayment of the debt from its current income and cash flows. This has seen the company steadily being drained of its 
cash resources and it had to be recapitalised to allow it to recover the R248m already spent on servicing the debt.

Increase in the 
value of investment 
properties from 
R924mil to R2.555m

Unlocking the value of assets 
through Balance Sheet 
Restructuring initiatives.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

During this time it became evident that Autopax was faced with liquidity and solvency challenges as operationally it could 
not support the burden of the external loan and the repayment thereof. On the 31 March 2011 PRASA bought 106 buses 
for R166 million from Autopax, as part of a PRASA Group balance sheet restructuring process conducted at the time. The 
proceeds thereof were utilized to reduce the external outstanding loan with Mercedes Benz and the monthly repayment 
reduced by R2.8 million (from R9.4 million to R 6.6 million).

In the year under review, PRASA approved a further recapitalisation of Autopax to arrest the deterioration in its financial 
position due to the 2010 debt burden. The following solution provided for:

a.  The partial settlement of the outstanding balance and consequential cost of the external loan with Mercedes Benz 
Financial Services S.A. (Pty) Ltd.

b. Partial settlement of the outstanding balance of the loan account with PRASA

c.  Cancellation of the operating lease with Daimler Fleet Management S.A. (Pty) Ltd. (in respect of the 50 leased buses). 
Autopax has formally communicated with the Lessor of its intention to terminate the lease 

The impact of the above on Autopax can be summarized as follows:

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Comprehensive Income

• Saving in cash outflow R79 million – loan repayment terminated Annual saving of R32 million on operating lease cost

• Saving in cash outflow R32 million – operating lease terminated Annual saving of R10 million on finance charges 

• Improve gearing ratio of the company to 18% 

• Improve the liquidity position of the company by R32 million 

• Restore liquidity and solvency to the company

The Board of Autopax, post-2010, initiated a turnaround strategy with 
the support of external consultants to amongst others, determine the 
optimum bus fleet requirement based on the then footprint of operations and identified expected new market expansions.

As part of this strategy, Autopax has with effect from 1 July 2012 implemented initiatives aimed as growing revenue while 
at the same time realizing efficiencies within the business. The key interventions include: 

a.  Implementation of route profitability analysis, which will realize an estimated saving on budgeted losses amounting to 
approximately R19,41 million for the 2012/13 financial period;

b.  Growth of the Autopax Charters footprint from a regional presence to a national presence with and intention to grow 
headline revenue2 five fold over the next 18 to 36 months;

c.  Densification of the retail footprint along with an aggressive marketing campaign with the intention of increasing 
passenger numbers by 5% in the current year and the respective market share;

d.  Realization of cost savings through strategic sourcing, inventory and contract management through the establishment 
of an internal Autopax SCM; and 

e.  Disposal of the old fleet through auctions which realized some R61.6 million to alleviate cash flow problems3.

1 The figures relates to the budgeted loss on the Rustenburg route. A decision has been taken to close the service effective 1 August 2012.
2 For the 2012/2013 financial year we have budgeted 25% growth (from R62.8 in 2012/2013 FY to R78.6million in 2013/2014 FY) 
3 Proceeds used to pay Wesbank and Siyaya Energy for fuel used in the business.

Strengthened the financial 
positions of Autopax and Intersite
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

ACCELERATED ROLLING STOCK PROGRAMME

PRASA continues to refurbish and upgrade many of the current trains to ensure that we extent the life of the coaches and 

sustaining current railway operations. The current Metrorail and Mainline Passenger Services fleet will still be required 

for many years to come before the replacement strategy and deployment of new, modern coaches reaches a critical mass.

In the 2012/13 Financial Year, PRASA refurbished 579 coaches against a target of 536 coaches to the tune of R1.8bn. This 

programme is of critical importance to ensure that the availability of the fleet is kept at the most highest level ever. The 

programme has also been vital in sustaining key companies in the rail engineering sector and sustaining over 1 857 jobs 

within the six contractor companies involved in this field. 

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE

PRASA developed and adopted its preventative maintenance strategy since 2009 to improve on the availability and reliability 

of rolling stock and infrastructure as part of improving the performance of passenger rail services. Planned maintenance in 

particular had to ensure that fleet availability and performance to meet Metrorail operational requirements were sustained 

above 90%. The target for the 2012/13 Financial Year was 98% of active Metrorail fleet but the performance was -1.60% 

below target of 96.4%. 

Preventive maintenance, unlike corrective maintenance, is the practice of replacing components or subsystems before they 

fail in order to promote continuous system operation. The schedule for preventive maintenance is based on observation 

of past system behavior, component wear-out mechanisms and knowledge of which components are vital to continued 

system operation. This is what PRASA has put in place since 2009; however the improvement is seen as depicted in the 

graphs herein. More improvements were realised during the 2012/13 year when it comes to fleet availability.

Availability which translates into reliability and cost is always a factor in the scheduling of preventive maintenance. In 

many circumstances, it is financially more sensible to replace parts or components that have not failed at predetermined 

intervals rather than to wait for a system failure that may result in a costly disruption in operations.

The deterioration of the commuter rail assets, specifically Rolling Stock and physical rail infrastructure, has been identified 

for some time as a critical issue requiring more funding investment.  Accelerated efforts in upgrading and overhauling 

of the rolling stock fleet have provided and still provide some relief in ensuring availability of rolling stock, however 

enhancements in strategic maintenance management lagged behind.

Preventive maintenance program is the organized, planned and scheduled performance of maintenance activities in order 

to prevent an asset (train set or system or infrastructure) or in-service failures or failures from occurring. This has seen 

the implementation of Planning Offices within all Metrorail Maintenance Depots, which are sustaining the gains. However 

with the real time monitoring system currently installed in trains as part of the continuous improvement where train 

performance is tracked and reactive before fault happens.

Numerous reasons exist for establishing a preventive maintenance program and the most significant reason for preventive 

maintenance program is to improve on availability and reduce costs of existing assets (Rolling Stock and Infrastructure). 

The reduction in cost incurred is seen in many ways, including the reduction of in-service failure and preventing the failure 

of asset maintenance during high peak performance demand. These interventions have resulted in minimal failures or 

breakdowns, reduced overtime costs, as well as identification of equipment with excessive maintenance costs and improved 

safety and quality conditions. See the trends below indicating the improvement as indicated herein.
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Current Rolling Stock Refurbishment Project

New Rolling Stock Impression

At the Unveiling of the Newly Refurbished Rolling Stock.At the Launch of the Newly Refurbished Train

PRASA Group CEO, Mr Lucky Montana,
Chairman of PRASA Board Mr Sfiso Buthelezi,
MEC for Transport in Gauteng Mr Ismail Vadi,
National Minister of Tranpsort Ms Dipuo Peters

MEC for Transport in Gauteng, Mr Ismail Vadi (in the yellow) 
National Minister of Transport Ms Dipuo Peters

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

26



GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

Number of Train Sets in Service vs. Regional Requirements

In addition remarkable improved train set and infrastructure availability is realized through the preservation and increased 
life expectancy of an asset. On average the higher the value of an asset and equipment the greater will be the return on 
preventive maintenance downtime.
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The depiction above indicates the improvement and an increased availability.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

Five Point Plan Improvement Program

Metrorail provides a critical service with over 2.6 million passenger trips daily. It runs over 2300 train trips on a daily basis. 
It continues to be the most affordable mode of transport that provides mobility to many South Africans. Over the years, the 
Metrorail service has experienced serious challenges mainly as a result of under investment in operational assets which 
had a serious impact on the reliability of the commuter rail service.  As PRASA continues to invest in the modernization of 
the passenger rail system, Metrorail is expected to deliver quality services to meet customer demands under the prevailing 
conditions. A Metrorail service Improvement Plan named the 5 Point Plan has therefore been developed 
and implemented in order to bring about visible and short-term improvements to improve 
customers’ travel experience whilst the modernization program of acquiring new rolling stock, re-signaling and 
other renewal programs is being rolled out over the next 5 years.

The 5 Point Plan has been designed to address the key customer concerns around overcrowding, very long and slow travel 
times, customer friendly timetables and safety. At the heart of this plan is the redesigning of Metrorail services to improve 
journey times and manage overcrowding in trains. All the Metrorail regions have commenced with the implementation of the 
Plan through the introduction of express trains and shuttle services to improve journey times and manage overcrowding. In 
addition, the program to accelerate infrastructure improvements to address issues impacting on train service performance 
such as speed restrictions is currently being implemented.

Since the implementation of the 5 Point Plan, passengers have begun to experience notable improvement on the provision 
of Metrorail services in relation to on-time performance, reduction of travel times and better management of overcrowding.
Commuter feedback has been positive and Metrorail continues to monitor the impact of the 5 Point Plan through dedicated 
feedback channels from our customers. The implementation of the 5 Point Plan is a demonstration of Metrorail’s ongoing 
commitment to improve the travel experience of its users.

PASSENGER NUMBERS

PRASA has set itself a goal of increasing patronage within its transport environment. The increase in patronage will be 
achieved through increased investment in rail assets, operational efficiency measures and improving on the reliability of 
various passenger services. 

Metrorail numbers grew by 2.3% from over 516 million passenger trips in 2011/12 to over 528 million passenger trips during 
2012/13in the year under review 2011/12 whilst Mainline Passenger Services (ShosholozaMeyl) decreased by 11.2% and 
Autopax by 0.5%. The recovery in Metrorail passenger numbers is consistent with the increased availability and reliability 
of train services currently underway. PRASA seeks to increase the passenger numbers within Metrorail but also salvage 
the difficult situation facing its long-distance rail business. 

In its current form and at current patronage levels, Mainline Passenger Services (MLPS) is clearly not sustainable. PRASA 
has embarked on the acquisition of 88 new locomotives but this will require major overhaul in the nature of MLPS operations 
in the short-term.  The Treasury decision to discontinue funding for long-distance rail services is simply irrational and does 
not have any basis in law and/or transport policy. The result is a further deterioration in the asset and is contributing to 

more passengers shifting from rail to road transport. This requires urgent review.

Metrorail Shosholoza Meyl Autopax

2011/12 516 392 805 1 423 173 3 163 424

2012/13 528 204 625 1 263 500 3 146 768

Change year on year 2.3% -11.2% -0.5%

29

NON-REGULATORY INFORMATION APASSENGER RAIL AGENCY OF SOUTH AFRICA ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13



GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued

Annual Safety Performance

PRASA remains fully committed in ensuring that safety is at the heart of managing our operations on a daily basis. Safety 
in our railway environment is managed through a comprehensive Safety Management System which has been approved by 
the Railway Safety Regulator. Central to this program is ensuring compliance to relevant safety legislation, standards and 
policies, the effective management of risks impacting on safety and the striving for continuous improvement to improve 
the safety and reliability of rail services.

The overall safety and security performance in the rail environment for the year under review reflects an improvement as 
indicated by the reduction in the number of occurrences in the critical occurrence categories. Of significance is the notable 
decline in the number of train collisions in the running line. Our PRASA RAIL division continues to work very closely with the 
Railway Safety Regulator as part of our commitment to improve safety. In addition, PRASA RAIL has embarked on a major 
public safety awareness program to address specific risks such as the crossing of railway lines, open doors and general 
behaviour in relation to platform and train interchange. Despite the notable improvements in safety performance in the 
year under review, PRASA remains resolute in striving for continuous improvement in safety in the railway environment.

CHALLENGES

The most immediate challenge facing PRASA is in the nature of the transaction on its Fleet Renewal Programme to be 
concluded with the Gibela Rail Transport Consortium (Consortium). PRASA has the responsibility to ensure that the 
consortium delivers on its commitments and that various penalties and mechanisms built into the MSA and TSSSA to 
secure the compliance by Gibela of these commitments.  PRASA should therefore not only monitor the performance of 
the above contract, but also that it has the requisite skills to ensure that the delivery of the new trains fully meet its 
requirements. Most importantly, PRASA needs to put in place effective controls and strategies to ensure that the cost of the 
transaction does not go beyond the commitments made on behalf of the country.  Critical to this, is the need to ensure that 
the issues of indexation and how escalating costs associated in particular with steel and copper does not drive the costs 
in this contract beyond the imaginable. PRASA must have the skills and professionals to ensure that its interests and that 
of South Africa are always protected.

The Draft Rail Policy currently under consideration by the Department of Transport will have to address a number of 
challenges. There are a number of Policy choices to be made. It is important that the role of rail in promoting social and 
economic development should remain the primary consideration, including how rail connects urban and rural areas of the 
country. Frequent public transport for the rural masses is a necessity for facilitating the participation of the rural areas 
in the reconstruction and development of our country. The matter of Rail as the backbone of South Africa’s transport 
system is critical and would require that the Policy provides sufficient guidance to transport planning authorities in this 
regard. Most of all, the policy should address the matter of the adoption of new rail technologies by South Africa, including 
light-rail solutions for inner-city travel as well as High-Speed Rail for Inter-city transport. These are vitally important to 
developing accessible transport for South Africans and the long-term social and economic development.

The transformation of PRASA as an organisation and change management for all its employees becomes critical at this 
stage. Investment in equipment that is not accompanied with by training and re-training of people, overhaul of structures, 
effective management systems  and a new set of values to drive service delivery, will undermine and potentially derail 
the very modernisation drive currently underway. PRASA therefore needs to undergo its own major organisational 
transformation to meet and deliver on the challenges of our times.

Tshepo Lucky Montana
Group Chief Executive Officer
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Bridge City Station built under the Bridge City Shopping Mall in Kwa-Mashu

Signalling and perway ugrades. Bridge City Speed gates access to platform level. 

Greenview Civil Works
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW Continued
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Cape Town Station
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PRASA 
HIGHLIGHTS FOR 
THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR

The following therefore summarises the Key Highlights in the Performance of PRASA for the 2012/13 Financial Year:  

 Increase in the value of assets (excluding investment property) grew by 25% from R19.4 billion to R24 billion

 Increase in the value of investment properties from R924mil to R2.555m

  Improvement on the company’s solvency with debt or solvency ratio at 0.17 despite operational challenges and 
unfunded mandate within Rail.

 Fare revenue excluding Government subsidy and other revenue growth by 16.3%

 Total Revenue (excluding government subsidy) grew by R549 m (16.3%) from R2.6 billion to R3.1 billion.

 Conclusion of the procurement process in relation to the Rolling Stock Fleet Renewal Programme 

  Commenced with the implementation of the 5-year Signalling Upgrade Programme in Gauteng, KwaZulu-Natal and 
the Western Cape.

 Capital expenditure improved by 82% from R3.5bn last year to R6.3bn.

 Reduced operational losses through various cost containment/management interventions

 Unlocking the value of assets through Balance Sheet Restructuring initiatives.

 Strengthened the financial positions of Autopax and Intersite

 Despite the demand for a 13% wage increase, the company settled at 8%.

 A total of 579 coaches delivered as part of the Accelerated Rolling Stock Programme.

  Established the SIP7 Project Office as part of the Government’s infrastructure programme under the Strategic 
Integrated Projects.

 Awarding of over 500 bursaries as part of skills development contribution and Learnerships
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Cape Town station impression

37

PASSENGER RAIL AGENCY OF SOUTH AFRICA ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B



BOARD OF 
CONTROL 
RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT

Mr Tshepo Lucky Montana
PRASA Group CEO

Mr Mfenyana Salanje
ARM Committee Chairperson

Mr Xolile George 
SHE Committee Chairperson

Mr Sfiso Buthelezi
PRASA Chairman of the Board

Dr Zanele B. Gasa
FCIP Committee Chairperson

The Board of Control of the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group, comprising the statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013 
and the statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the 
year then ended, as well as the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which included a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the Board of Control’s Report, in accordance with South African 
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 
1999 (Act No 1 of 1999), the Legal Succession to the South African Transport Services Act, 1989 (Act No 9 of 1989).

Abbreviations:

  FCIP – Finance, Capital Investment
 and Procurement Committee

 ARM – Audit and Risk Management Committee

 SHE – Safety, Health and Environmental Committee

 HR – Human Resources
 and Remuneration Committee

CHAIRPERSONS

FCIP Committee

Dr. Zanele B Gasa

ARM Committee

Mr. Mfanyana Salanje

SHE Committee

Mr. Xolile George

HR and REM Committee

Ms Namhla Mxenge
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Mr Mawethu Vilana

Mr Lindikaya Zide
PRASA Company Secretary

Marissa Moore Mr Thulani Gcabashe

Ms Namhla Mxenge
HR and REM Committee Chairperson

The Board of Control’s responsibility include:

•  Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

• Selecting and applying appropriate accounting  policies;

• Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

• Maintaining an effective system of risk management.

The Board of Control has made an assessment of the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
there is no reason to believe the businesses will not be going concerns in the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the Group consolidated financial statements and the Company’s 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of  Group consolidated financial statements and Company financial statements

The Group consolidated financial statements and Company financial statements of the Passenger Rail Agency of South 
Africa, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved by the Board of Control on 31 July 2013 and signed on its behalf by

Sfiso Buthelezi       Tshepo Lucky Montana
Chairman of the PRASA Board     Group Chief Executive Officer
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AUDIT 
COMMITTEE’S 
RESPONSIBILITY

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our Charter in line with the requirements of 
Section 51 (1) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999 (“PFMA”) as amended, Treasury Regulation 27.1 and 
Section 94(7) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (“Companies”) as amended. We further report that we have conducted our 
affairs in compliance with this Charter.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal control applied by the Company over financial and risk management is effective, efficient and 
transparent.

In line with the PFMA and the King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2009 and the King Code of Governance 
Principles (collectively King III), Internal Audit provides the Audit and Risk Committee, and Management with assurance 
that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well 
as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various 
reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and the management report of the 
Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted that no matters were reported that indicate any material deficiencies in the 
system of internal control or any deviations there from. Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control over 
financial reporting for the period under review was efficient and effective.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

We have:
•  Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual Report, with the Auditor-

General South Africa and the Chief Executive Officer.
•  Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s management report and management’s response thereto.
• Approved the Company’s Risk Management Policy and Framework.
•  Reviewed the Company’s Quarterly Financial and Performance Reports submitted to the Shareholder.
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

We concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report on the Annual Financial Statements, and are of 
the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements should be accepted read together with the report of the Auditor-
General South Africa

Internal audit

The Internal Audit function is centralized at a Group level. We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating 
effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the Company in its audits.

Auditor-General South Africa

We have met with the Auditor-General South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
IMPROVED BY 82% 
FROM R3.5BN LAST 
YEAR TO R6.3BN.
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REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF 
THE AUDITOR-
GENERAL TO THE 
PARLIAMENT ON 
PASSENGER RAIL
AGENCY OF 
SOUTH AFRICA

Introduction

1.  I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa (PRASA) 
set out on pages 64 to 97, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for 
the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and the accounting authority’s report.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

2.  The board of directors which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with South African Statements 
of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), the Companies Act of South Africa,2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008)(Companies 
Act) and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based on my 
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), 
the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated and separate financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

6.  In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013, and their financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice and the requirements of the PFMA and the Companies Act.
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Additional matters

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

8.  The supplementary information set out on pages 55 to 63 do not form part of the financial statements and is presented 
as additional information. I have not audited this schedule and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Material inconsistencies in other information included in the annual report

9.  Final draft annual report was not submitted for review of consistency between audited information and other 
information to be included in that report.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

10.  In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to 
performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Predetermined objectives

11.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages 46 to 54 of the annual report.

12.  The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented 
in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is 
consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and 
targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by 
the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information.

13.  The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).

14.  There were no material findings on the annual performance report concerning the usefulness and reliability of the 
information.

Additional matter

15.  I draw attention to the following matter below. This matter does not have an impact on the predetermined objectives 
audit findings reported above.

Achievement of planned targets

16.  Of the total number of 56 targets planned for the year, 29 targets were not achieved during the year under review. This 
represents 52% of total planned targets that were not achieved during the year under review. This was mainly due to 
the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during the strategic planning process.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued
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Compliance with laws and regulations

17.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with 
specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are 
as follows:

Annual financial statements, budgets, performance and annual report

18.  The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 
requirements of section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA due to misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors 
which were subsequently corrected.

Procurement and contract management

19.  Irregular expenditure of R14 992 589 was incurred due to procurement awards made without three quotations being 
obtained and deviation from the Supply Chain Management Policy (SCM Policy) without prior approval of the Group 
Chief Executive Officer (GCEO) and the accounting authority; contrary to the requirements of PFMA.

20.  The deviations from competitive bidding were approved on the basis of being an emergency, even though there was 
sufficient time available to follow a normal competitive bidding process as required by the PFMA.

21.  Six contracts were amended or extended without approval by a delegated official, resulting in non-compliance with the 
SCM policies developed in terms of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations.

22.  Construction tender bids were not advertised on the Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) website, 
contrary to the prescripts of the CIDB Act, 2000 (Act No. 38 of 2000) and regulations issued in terms of the Act.

Expenditure Management

23.  Certain controls put in place were not effective to prevent irregular expenditure from being incurred, as required by 
section 51(1) (b) of the PFMA.

24.  Monies owing by PRASA were not always paid within 30 days of receiving an invoice or statement resulting in fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure being incurred due to interest charged on late payments to suppliers, contrary to the 
requirements of section 51(1)(c) of the PFMA.

25.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure to the value of R3 402 775 was incurred due to disciplinary proceedings not timely 
undertaken for suspended employees and late payments to suppliers, contrary to section 51 (1 ) of the PFMA.

Reporting of financial misconduct cases

26.  The accounting authority did not annually submit report to Treasury and the Auditor-General of financial misconducts 
it instituted against any of its officials in terms of the PFMA, contrary to the requirements of Treasury Regulation 
33.3.1.

Internal control

27.  I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and compliance with laws and regulations. 
The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant deficiencies that 
resulted in the findings on the performance report and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included 
in this report.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued
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Leadership

28.  There were instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and supply chain management weaknesses noted 
during the audit. The entity fell short in ensuring that compliance with laws and regulations were adhered to during 
the financial year. The accounting authority should improve internal and accounting controls environment to ensure 
non-recurrence of these shortcomings.

29.  The action plans developed should be monitored regularly through its oversight responsibility to ensure these 
weaknesses are addressed.

30.  The entity fell short of developing control activities over processes and transactions that contribute to the mitigation of 
risks to the achievement of the objectives, to an acceptable level as 52% of the performance targets were not achieved 
during 2012-13 performance period. Revision and approval of targets not likely to be achieved was not undertaken.

Financial and performance management

Regular, accurate and complete financial reports

31.  Internal controls were not effective in ensuring that the financial statements submitted for auditing were free from 
disclosure errors and misstatements.

OTHER REPORTS

Investigations

32.  A forensic investigation is being conducted into the alleged business interest in suppliers levelled against PRASA’s 
official who is alleged to have referred all PRASA fleet vehicles for repairs to service provider where the official has a 
business interest. Another investigation on alleged irregularities on PRASA is being conducted by the Public Protector 
to establish whether there are any irregularities as alleged by complainant. These investigations were still ongoing at 
the reporting date.

33.  Forensic investigations were conducted into allegations of unethical behaviour by a middle management official at one 
of the divisions and into payroll irregularities where unauthorised payments were made to terminated employees. The 
investigation resulted in a disciplinary action against the manager being recommended and irregular payments made 
identified. The disciplinary process and recovery of the irregular payments made was still outstanding at the date of 
this report.

Pretoria
06 August 2013

Auditing to build public confidence

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued
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PRASA 
PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 2012/13

INTRODUCTION

PRASA improved on its performance in 2012/13 with more targets achieved and an improvement on projects completed. 
Of note is the large improvement in the spending on the capital allocation of 82% compared to 2011/12. 2013/14 will 
be a year of the commencement of the key projects following the tender and negotiation processes that needed to be 
completed on especially the large capital projects that are all of a multi-year implementation nature. PRASA Technical 
and PRASA Rail will coordinate the project implementation across the various regions to ensure impact of the projects on 
current performance levels of the rail service is minimised as far as possible. Specific actions and communications with 
our commuters and passengers are also in progress to keep them abreast of all the changes that will be happening. 

Funding on the operations of PRASA remains a constraint with the unfunded mandate of the long-distance passenger 
rail service of Mainline Passenger Services. This has required the organisation to pursue different funding strategies and 
the Board of Control has approved the funding strategy anchored in the property assets in December 2012. The funding 
strategy makes provision for the buy-back of leases of key properties that will enhance PRASA’s ability to develop and earn 
revenues from these properties in the future; the development of specific station precincts in order to generate revenues 
as well as partnerships with suppliers of goods and services within the station precincts. The property strategy is by nature 
not a short term solution but will as with counterparts worldwide in the rail business enable PRASA to start on a path of 
sustainable revenue generation from its own assets. In addition further exploration of revenues that could be derived from 
the rail infrastructure especially the communications infrastructure will be key deliverables in the new financial year. 

The modernisation drive in PRASA is now commencing in earnest with a number of flagship projects commencing namely 
the Rolling Stock Renewal programme;  the national signaling programme in KwaZulu Natal and Western Cape; rail depot 
modernisation in preparation for the new rail fleet; digital signaling radio network; corridor modernisation on prioritised 
stations and upgrade of the track network on prioritised corridors for speeds of 120 km/h. This is in addition to a number 
of projects that have started in the previous two years such as work on the Bridge City Rail link in Kwazulu Natal that 
will be completed by the second half of the new financial year and the rail infrastructure work between Greenview and 
Pienaarspoort estimated by end of this financial year 2013/14.

A portion of the capital allocation remains focused on the current rail system to ensure sustainability of the operations 
during the period of modernisation. These projects form a critical element of building and retaining confidence in the 
system that has served South Africans for decades. PRASA is using its capital programme to create jobs through suppliers 
and contractors and have created and retained in excess of 5000 jobs in 2012/13. Specifically the employment of youth will 
be a priority in 2013/14 and PRASA Technical will be pursuing this with a number of projects that are due for tendering in 
2013/14. 

The delivery of projects under SIP7 is an opportunity for PRASA to establish the link between rail and municipal infrastructure 
to increase the relevance of rail in transport yet again. Job creation and contribution to local economies will be results from 
the SIP7 projects facilitated by PRASA for execution. 

Improvement on the company’s 
solvency with debt or solvency 
ratio at 0.17 despite operational 
challenges and unfunded 
mandate within Rail.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE:

Strengthen the Financial Position of the Organisation

 Improve Financial Performance

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Balance Sheet 
Restructuring

Restructured 
Balance Sheet

Approved funding 
plan

Mar 2013 A funding 
strategy 
anchored 
on property 
approved 
November 2012

The Board of Control 
approved the property 
strategy that seeks to 
develop PRASA properties 
as a funding source. R450 m 
were approved to buy back 
development leases on key 
PRASA properties as well as 
an investment plan of R1,5bn 
over five years. 

Improved financial 
(Cash) position

Strategic Equity 
Partner (SEP)

Mar 2013 Not complete -100% An investigation on 
Railway Stations property 
development opportunities 
was completed in December 
2012. 8 railway stations 
were identified for detailed 
investigations, as part of 
phase 2. It is estimated 
that the entire book of 
work for the acquisition 
of development rights 
will take 27 months to 
complete. Two stations 
Pretoria and Johannesburg 
have been selected as a 
precursor to phase 2 i.e. 
detailed feasibility studies. 
The programme would be 
presented to the Finance, 
Capital Investment and 
Procurement Committee 
(FCIP) and Board of Intersite 
in 2013/14.

Optimal bus fleet 
for Autopax

Excess buses 
disposed

Jun 2012 Completed 
November 2013

Engineering 
division

Engineering section 
established

Sep 2012 Completed 
with system in 
operation from 2 
April 2013

Retirement Fund 
solution

Establish 
Retirement Fund 
solution for PRASA

Sep 2012 50% Complete -50% A proposal has been 
developed and approved by 
both EXCO and the Cash and 
Cost Committee. Labour still 
needs to be engaged on the 
proposal. The project to date 
is around 50% complete.

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Revenue 
Generation

Operationally 
generated revenue 

Operationally 
generated revenue 

R3.974bn R3.647bn -8.23% PRASA CRES did not achieve 
its revenue target due to 
poor property rental demand 
and lower rentals. Whilst 
revenue collection in Rail 
Operations improved year on 
year, it was 8% below budget 
in the main as a result of 
lower passenger numbers 
on Mainline Passenger 
Services (MLPS). Autopax 
could not secure additional 
bus operating licenses to 
extend its footprint with a 
result of 14% shortfall on fare 
revenue.

01
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Operational Effectiveness

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Service Excellence 
Programme

Customer 
satisfaction 
improved

Customer 
Satisfaction Index 
(CSI)

74% 65.25% -8.75% Autopax services are 
experiencing challenges 
with operational 
inefficiencies, inclement 
weather conditions, road 
closures and an increase in 
the accident rate. 

The lowest rated element 
for PRASA Rail was the 
‘operations of trains’ that 
contributed to the lower 
customer satisfaction.

Patronage growth Passenger trips 565.3 million 532.61 million -5.78% Autopax showed a 
decrease of 2% on paying 
passengers on 2011/12 
that can largely be 
attributed to the downturn 
in economic climate. 

On Metrorail the passenger 
numbers were 5.7% lower 
due to trains cancelled 
as result of rolling stock 
challenges and the NTM 
strike. Adverse weather 
in KZN led to wash away 
of rail tracks and train 
service suspension.  On 
MLPS reduced services 
are the main contributor to 
underperformance of 58%.

Reliable service Passenger 
Performance 
Measure (PPM)

85% 78.8% -6.20% Train cancellations and 
poor timekeeping impacted 
on PPM.

Station 
improvement 
(National Station 
Improvement 
Programme)

Station completion 
certificates 
accepted 

97 49 projects -49.48% Due to various challenges 
relating to the evaluation 
and appointment of 
contractors the scheduled 
dates were missed 
hence making it highly 
impossible for projects to 
be completed within the 
2012/13 financial year. 
Mitigation measures have 
been put in place so that 
key deadlines are adhered 
to. 

03

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Financial 
Management

Improved financial 
results

Operating shortfall 
(including 
depreciation and 
amortization)

Shortfall of 
R593.3m

Shortfall 
R156.7m

73.59% Prasa CRES and Prasa 
Rail operational shortfalls, 
especially personnel cost 
and haulage. Provision for 
insurance claims increased 
by R140m to a liability of 
R540m as per actuarial 
valuation done by Marsch 
Insurance Brokers.

Capital 
Management

Capital programme 
governance

Capital spend
R6.701bn

R6.701bn R6.329bn -5.55% A significant improvement of 
82% on spend in the Capital 
programme was realised as 
the key investment projects 
are coming on stream. 
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PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Service Excellence 
Programme

Customer 
satisfaction 
improved

Customer 
Satisfaction Index 
(CSI)

74% 65.25% -8.75% Autopax services are 
experiencing challenges 
with operational 
inefficiencies, inclement 
weather conditions, road 
closures and an increase in 
the accident rate. 

The lowest rated element 
for PRASA Rail was the 
‘operations of trains’ that 
contributed to the lower 
customer satisfaction.

Patronage growth Passenger trips 565.3 million 532.61 million -5.78% Autopax showed a 
decrease of 2% on paying 
passengers on 2011/12 
that can largely be 
attributed to the downturn 
in economic climate. 

On Metrorail the passenger 
numbers were 5.7% lower 
due to trains cancelled 
as result of rolling stock 
challenges and the NTM 
strike. Adverse weather 
in KZN led to wash away 
of rail tracks and train 
service suspension.  On 
MLPS reduced services 
are the main contributor to 
underperformance of 58%.

Reliable service Passenger 
Performance 
Measure (PPM)

85% 78.8% -6.20% Train cancellations and 
poor timekeeping impacted 
on PPM.

Station 
improvement 
(National Station 
Improvement 
Programme)

Station completion 
certificates 
accepted 

97 49 projects -49.48% Due to various challenges 
relating to the evaluation 
and appointment of 
contractors the scheduled 
dates were missed 
hence making it highly 
impossible for projects to 
be completed within the 
2012/13 financial year. 
Mitigation measures have 
been put in place so that 
key deadlines are adhered 
to. 

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Financial 
Management

Improved financial 
results

Operating shortfall 
(including 
depreciation and 
amortization)

Shortfall of 
R593.3m

Shortfall 
R156.7m

73.59% Prasa CRES and Prasa 
Rail operational shortfalls, 
especially personnel cost 
and haulage. Provision for 
insurance claims increased 
by R140m to a liability of 
R540m as per actuarial 
valuation done by Marsch 
Insurance Brokers.

Capital 
Management

Capital programme 
governance

Capital spend
R6.701bn

R6.701bn R6.329bn -5.55% A significant improvement of 
82% on spend in the Capital 
programme was realised as 
the key investment projects 
are coming on stream. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Preventative Maintenance

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Preventative 
Maintenance

Planned 
maintenance for 
rail fleet1 

Metrorail active 
fleet availability1

98% 96.4% -1.60% Vandalism and challenges 
with failures compounded 
supply of rolling stock.

Active fleet 
availability

MLPS locomotive 
availability2 

98% 71% -27.00% Derailments on-route, falling 
rocks damaged Loco’s, and 
pantograph hook-ups are 
the main reasons. (insurance 
claims under way)

Metrorail fleet 
reliability

6000 km3 7840.2km 30.67% Main contributors to the 
reliability shortfall:- water 
ingress (10M5) which impact 
on electrical traction (calling 
for redesign) and driver 
error (up-skilling program 
underway).

Mean time 
(distance) between 
failures (MDBF) (875km) (813km) (-7.09%)

Network availability 
and reliability

Metrorail network 
availability

1.25% delays 
of trains due to 
infrastructure

5.3% -4.05% Although high, train delays 
(reliability) as a result of 
infrastructure improved on 
an annual basis from 5,9% 
to 5,3%  mainly as a result of 
Capital intervention financial 
input. The target was 
incorrectly set as 2011/12 
performance was 5.9%.

1.   Active fleet availability reflects the availability of train sets versus the required train sets for daily service in the Metrorail environment.
2.  MLPS availability is calculated as the percentage of locomotives available against the number required for a full rationalised service of 72 locos.
3.  Target reflect average kilometre travelled per month per train set instead of MDBF. MDBF indicated in brackets.

04

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Safety of 
passengers 
improved

Integrated 
Management 
system

Accidents per 
million vehicle  
kilometer

Reduce by 5% 
to 2.79

3.38 -21,15% Autopax exceeded the 
ceiling by 26% as result 
of increased frequency 
of accidents involving 
livestock and inclement 
weather conditions. 
Mitigation measures were 
put in place to deal with 
driver fatigue. 

PRASA Rail performance 
was below the ceiling 
set showing the impact 
of a drive to focus on 
operational incidents 
reduction. 

Accidents also reflect 
minor incidents in the bus 
environment as well as 
yard incidents in the case 
of rail.

Fatalities per 
million passengers 

Reduce by 5% 
to 0.42

0.65 -54.76% Increased fatalities in the 
rail environment due to 
overcrowding of trains due 
to shortage of rolling stock.

Autopax showed a decline 
in fatalities.

Injuries per million 
passengers 

Reduce by 10% 
to 4.68

3.18 32.05% Reduction in rail incidents 
contributed to lower 
injuries whilst injuries of 
passengers and public 
were lower for the buses. 
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PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Metrorail network reliability: Mean time between failures (Hours) (MTBF)

Signals
Perway

Electrical

2 hours
10 hours
15 hours

0.4 hours
6.4 hours
10.2 hours

-80.00%
-36.00%
-32.00%

Ageing safety critical 
material components are 
mainly responsible for this 
negative performance.
Weighted calculations 
indicated below also give 
more realistic results.

The business reflected on the calculations above and decided that a weighted average will be used. This 
provides for a more representative figure of all regions and not a skewed view on the performance of a single 
region. The table below indicates the performance against the weighted average calculations.  

 

Utilisation of active 
fleet

Active bus fleet 
utilisation rate

80% 62% -18.00% Improvements were brought 
about by the correct splitting 
of the fleet into regions 
and contracts from mid- 
year. Better planning tools 
will assist in improving 
this performance further. 
Improved from previous 
year’s 50% and 85% 
utilisation was reached in the 
last quarter of 2012/13.

Reliable bus service Breakdowns per
60 000 km

1 1.74 -74.00% It was for the first time that 
this measure was introduced 
and there was no benchmark 
available for comparison. 
60 000 was chosen by the 
maintenance team without 
any scientific evidence.
45 000 as Measured Distance 
Between Failures (MDBF) 
was achieved. 60% of the 
breakdowns are road related 
and therefore out of the 
control of the maintenance 
teams. This includes tyres 
and windscreens.

Target 
2012/13

Progress 2012/13 
(Weighted Average)

Variance Realistic 
Target

Variance against 
realistic target

Signals 2 hours 1.59 hours -20.50% 1.8 hours -11.67%

Perway 10 hours 34.6 hours 246.00% 35.1 hours -1.42%

Electrical 15 hours 26.7 hours 78.00% 35.9 hour -25.63%

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Modernisation and Capacity Enhancement

Capacity Enhancement

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Station Development 
Programme

Station upgrades Completion 
certificates 
accepted of stations 
completed

38 8 projects -78.95% Due to various challenges 
relating to the evaluation 
and appointment of 
contractors the scheduled 
dates were missed 
hence making it highly 
impossible for projects to 
be completed within the 
2012/13 financial year. 
Mitigation measures have 
been put in place so that 
key deadlines are adhered 
to. 
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PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Metrorail network reliability: Mean time between failures (Hours) (MTBF)

Signals
Perway

Electrical

2 hours
10 hours
15 hours

0.4 hours
6.4 hours
10.2 hours

-80.00%
-36.00%
-32.00%

Ageing safety critical 
material components are 
mainly responsible for this 
negative performance.
Weighted calculations 
indicated below also give 
more realistic results.

The business reflected on the calculations above and decided that a weighted average will be used. This 
provides for a more representative figure of all regions and not a skewed view on the performance of a single 
region. The table below indicates the performance against the weighted average calculations.  

 

Utilisation of active 
fleet

Active bus fleet 
utilisation rate

80% 62% -18.00% Improvements were brought 
about by the correct splitting 
of the fleet into regions 
and contracts from mid- 
year. Better planning tools 
will assist in improving 
this performance further. 
Improved from previous 
year’s 50% and 85% 
utilisation was reached in the 
last quarter of 2012/13.

Reliable bus service Breakdowns per
60 000 km

1 1.74 -74.00% It was for the first time that 
this measure was introduced 
and there was no benchmark 
available for comparison. 
60 000 was chosen by the 
maintenance team without 
any scientific evidence.
45 000 as Measured Distance 
Between Failures (MDBF) 
was achieved. 60% of the 
breakdowns are road related 
and therefore out of the 
control of the maintenance 
teams. This includes tyres 
and windscreens.

Capacity Enhancement

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Station Development 
Programme

Station upgrades Completion 
certificates 
accepted of stations 
completed

38 8 projects -78.95% Due to various challenges 
relating to the evaluation 
and appointment of 
contractors the scheduled 
dates were missed 
hence making it highly 
impossible for projects to 
be completed within the 
2012/13 financial year. 
Mitigation measures have 
been put in place so that 
key deadlines are adhered 
to. 

Capacity Enhancement

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Accelerated Rolling 
Stock Programme

Increased 
availability of 
current train fleet

Train fleet 
availability

90% 84% -6.00% The level of coaches 
scheduled for 
refurbishments remain 
around 10% of the fleet. 
More than 300 coaches 
were lost in the last 3 
months of the year due to 
derailments, collisions, 
trains set on fire and 
vandalism.

Upgrade and GO 
Programme

Coaches delivered:

Metrorail 500 579 15.80% 

Reduced cost Shosholoza Meyl 
coaches

200 3 -98.50% The target of 200 was an 
overstatement and could 
not be sustained in the 
available budget of R193m. 
The target was revised 
to 50. Part of the budget 
was subsequently applied 
to the purchasing of air-
conditioners to improve 
passenger comfort on 
Shosholoza Meyl services. 

Locomotives 14 9 -35.71% The last 5 locomotives will 
be delivered in 2013/14. 

Greenview – 
Pienaarspoort

Rail Extension with 
doubling of line for 
4,5km, two station 
upgrades and one 
new station.

Package 1 : Track 
Doubling and Rail 
Infrastructure 
completion 
certificate

Jun 2013 80% completion -20.00% 

14 month 
delay

Delay of 11 months on the 
project due to default of 
original main contractor 
in 2011/12. Work re-
commenced the end of 
the second quarter but 
was then delayed by work 
stoppages of workers that 
resulted in a further 3 
months delay. Agreement 
was reached with the 
community to commence 
work on 3 December 2012.   
Perway, Earthworks, 
Electrical and Signaling 
were again on site in 
last quarter of 2012/13. 
Construction of Mamelodi 
Gardens and Greenview 
station has been delayed 
due to the approval of 
the station drawings that 
is still outstanding. This 
process is being delayed 
due to the outstanding 
permission required from 
City of Tshwane (CoT) that 
Prasa may utilise the CoT 
owned land at the stations 
require for the project. The 
relocation of the informal 
settlement at the proposed 
Greenview station is also 
long outstanding.

Station Decking Increase 
developable area 
around key stations

Approved 
developmental plan 
for Berea Road

Mar 2013 80% complete -20.00% The Berea station 
development lease 
agreement to be finalised 
by May 2013. Zoning 
rights approved. Municipal 
approval for development 
still outstanding. 
Construction estimated for 
2014/15. 
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Modernisation Enhancement

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Fleet Recapitalisation New Rail Fleet 
Procurement

Issue Tender 
document

Mar 2012 Completed Apr 
2012

Since the tender or 
Request for Proposal 
was issued the following 
activities were completed: 
•   An optimized Request 

for Proposal was issued 
on 18 Jul 2012

•   Submission of bids by 
bidders was received 30 
Sep 2012

•   PRASA evaluated the 
bids between Oct and 
Nov 2012

•   The PRASA Board 
approved the preferred 
bidder 30 Nov 2012

•   Cabinet noted the 
Preferred bidder and 
selected technology in 
Feb 2013.

Award contract Jun 2013 Scheduled for 
completion Jun 
2013

No variance

Upgraded Signaling System:

National Signaling 
Upgrade Programme

Stage 1: 
Gauteng Phase 1

Validated SICAS 
interlocking

Jun 2012 30% -70.00% A validation workshop 
was held in Germany to 
address specific problems 
encountered and Siemens 
is currently following up on 
these issues.

The target completion 
date is 21 June 2013. It 
should however be noted 
that any unforeseen issues 
encountered during the 
validation exercise might 
nullify progress figures and 
create significant delays 
on the overall contract 
implementation period.

Detailed Gauteng 
Nerve Centre (GNC) 
design approval

Nov 2012 80% -20.00% The GNC Concept Design 
packages were completed 
in mid-December 2012 
and submitted for approval 
mid-March 2013. All 
drawings and documents 
have been reviewed 
with comments by the 
consultant. Siemens is 
currently busy elaborating 
new revisions and it is 
expected that these will be 
available at the beginning 
of April 2013. 

GNC construction 
completed

Dec 2013 Site 
Establishment 
and bulk 
earthworks in 
progress.

No variance

Stage 2:
KZN Phase 1

Tender awarded to 
preferred bidder

Feb 2012 Completed
Jun 2012

PRASA deemed it 
necessary to ensure 
effectiveness of the 
evaluations had priority as 
this technology change will 
impact decades to come.

Contract negotiated Mar 2012 Completed
Dec 2012

Phase 1 
Construction 
commence

May 2012 0% complete -100% Implementation to 
commence May 2013
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Modernisation Enhancement

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Fleet Recapitalisation New Rail Fleet 
Procurement

Issue Tender 
document

Mar 2012 Completed Apr 
2012

Since the tender or 
Request for Proposal 
was issued the following 
activities were completed: 
•   An optimized Request 

for Proposal was issued 
on 18 Jul 2012

•   Submission of bids by 
bidders was received 30 
Sep 2012

•   PRASA evaluated the 
bids between Oct and 
Nov 2012

•   The PRASA Board 
approved the preferred 
bidder 30 Nov 2012

•   Cabinet noted the 
Preferred bidder and 
selected technology in 
Feb 2013.

Award contract Jun 2013 Scheduled for 
completion Jun 
2013

No variance

Upgraded Signaling System:

National Signaling 
Upgrade Programme

Stage 1: 
Gauteng Phase 1

Validated SICAS 
interlocking

Jun 2012 30% -70.00% A validation workshop 
was held in Germany to 
address specific problems 
encountered and Siemens 
is currently following up on 
these issues.

The target completion 
date is 21 June 2013. It 
should however be noted 
that any unforeseen issues 
encountered during the 
validation exercise might 
nullify progress figures and 
create significant delays 
on the overall contract 
implementation period.

Detailed Gauteng 
Nerve Centre (GNC) 
design approval

Nov 2012 80% -20.00% The GNC Concept Design 
packages were completed 
in mid-December 2012 
and submitted for approval 
mid-March 2013. All 
drawings and documents 
have been reviewed 
with comments by the 
consultant. Siemens is 
currently busy elaborating 
new revisions and it is 
expected that these will be 
available at the beginning 
of April 2013. 

GNC construction 
completed

Dec 2013 Site 
Establishment 
and bulk 
earthworks in 
progress.

No variance

Stage 2:
KZN Phase 1

Tender awarded to 
preferred bidder

Feb 2012 Completed
Jun 2012

PRASA deemed it 
necessary to ensure 
effectiveness of the 
evaluations had priority as 
this technology change will 
impact decades to come.

Contract negotiated Mar 2012 Completed
Dec 2012

Phase 1 
Construction 
commence

May 2012 0% complete -100% Implementation to 
commence May 2013

Modernisation Enhancement

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance 
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Stage 3:
Western Cape 
Phase 1

Tender awarded to 
preferred bidder

Apr 2012 Completed
Jun 2012

PRASA deemed it 
necessary to ensure 
effectiveness of the 
evaluations had priority as 
this technology change will 
impact decades to come.

Contract negotiated May 2012 Complete
Mar 2013

PRASA deemed it 
necessary to ensure 
effectiveness of the 
negotiations had priority as 
this technology change will 
impact decades to come. 
The contract is awaiting 
signature of supplier. 

Phase 1 
Construction 
commence

Jul 2012 0% complete -100%

National 
Station Precinct 
Development

Development on key 
PRASA stations to 
generate revenue 
and cash flow

Market study 
complete

12 stations 11 stations 
completed

-8% Desktop study conducted 
on entire  scheme to 
acquire land  use rights for 
outstanding Kwa- Mashu 
station.

Conceptual site 
development plan 
complete

12 stations 9 stations 
completed

-25.00% New team appointed  by  
developer to review the 
concepts for Heideveld, 
Goodwood & Retreat 
stations in Western Cape.

The developer has had to 
redesign their concept for 
Kwa-Mashu and opt for an 
overhead station due to 
space limitations caused 
by an agreement entered 
into by Prasa CRES and 
ETA (Ethekwini Transport 
Agency). Crowie has 
undertaken a feasibility 
exercise to confirm the 
viability of the scheme.

Development 
Agreement signed

KwaMnyandu by 
Apr 2012

Signed 
September 2012.

Mutual land donations 
between PRASA and 
eThekwini Municipality 
for the KwaMnyandu 
development had to be 
made and conclusion of 
this was only reached in 
September 2012. 

Construction 
commence

KwaMnyandu by 
Jun 2012 

Construction 
commenced 
March 2013

Bridge City 
Development

Network expansion 
with New Bridge 
City Station

Increased capacity

Increased 
patronage

Earthworks 
completed

Mar 2012 100% complete

Viaducts & Bridges 
completed

Jun 2012 80% complete -20.00% Structure destroyed during 
constructor industrial 
action.

Rail link complete Mar 2013 60% complete -40.00% Delayed due to Industrial 
action and adverse weather

Duff’s Road Tie-in 
with mainline 
complete

Mar 2013 60% complete -40.00% Delays as a subsequence 
of delays in the via duct 
and to Industrial action.

Completion 
certificate

Jun 2013 0% complete -100% To be completed in August 
2013
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Manage Risk

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Corporate 
Governance and 
Compliance

Functional Audit 
Committee

Frequency of 
Audit Committee 
Meetings

Quarterly Four Meetings None

Board Effectiveness Board Surveys Sep 2012 Not complete -100% No survey commissioned

Internal control 
Environment

Audit on 
Governance and 
Compliance

No matters of 
emphasis

No matters of 
emphasis

None

Broad Based 
Black Economic 
Empowerment 
(BBBEE)

Percentage of total 
discretionary spend 
to BBBEE

75% 82.2% 7.20%

Women in Rail Spending on woman 
owned engineering 
related companies 
as % of CAPEX

10% of Capex 
Spend

4.2% of
Capex spend

-5.80% No formal agreement 
reached with Business 
Units regarding target 
spend, this will be done for 
2013/14. The amount spent 
on the Woman Owned 
Engineering companies 
increased to R262.9m, a 
31% increase on 2011/12.

Create job 
opportunities in 
PRASA through 
suppliers

Fixed Term 
Equivalent 
opportunities 
created

3140 5986 90.64% Most jobs created were on 
the large capital projects of 
Accelerated Rolling Stock, 
Bridge City, Greenview – 
Pienaarspoort and NSIP.

Risk Management Risk Management 
Strategy

Business Continuity 
Management 
Systems

Risk reviews and 
monitoring of risks

Quarterly

(As agreed with 
BOC - 100% 
Business Unit & 
Functional Risk 
Assessments

77%

(100% entities 
completed 
and 75% of 
Functional 
areas)

-23.00% Risk assessment on 
Strategy department is 
not completed due to non-
availability of department.

100% Monitoring 
of Strategic 
Risk)

86% -14.00% Some mitigation plans 
submitted did not have risk 
indicators to measure the 
progress on risk mitigation.

Unqualified audit Unqualified audit 
with reduction in 
findings

25% reduction in 
findings.

Unqualified audit 
with increase in 
findings

-43.46% on 
findings.

An increase of 18.46% 
in findings with 61.7% 
of findings in ‘Other 
Important Matters’. 

07

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Human Capital Development

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Training and 
Development

Skills development 
in line with new 
investment

Percentage of direct 
training spend

2.5% 1.7% -0.80% Due to cost saving 
initiatives within rail. Only 
reflect external training. 
External training spend 
increased by 32% on 
2011/12. 

Number of trainees 2070 1651 -20.24% Mostly Protection Services 
learnerships however 
plans for new year will be 
reviewed to meet future 
targets.

Full time technical 
apprenticeships and 
bursaries

430 471 inclusive of 
52 apprentices.

9.53%
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PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Corporate 
Governance and 
Compliance

Functional Audit 
Committee

Frequency of 
Audit Committee 
Meetings

Quarterly Four Meetings None

Board Effectiveness Board Surveys Sep 2012 Not complete -100% No survey commissioned

Internal control 
Environment

Audit on 
Governance and 
Compliance

No matters of 
emphasis

No matters of 
emphasis

None

Broad Based 
Black Economic 
Empowerment 
(BBBEE)

Percentage of total 
discretionary spend 
to BBBEE

75% 82.2% 7.20%

Women in Rail Spending on woman 
owned engineering 
related companies 
as % of CAPEX

10% of Capex 
Spend

4.2% of
Capex spend

-5.80% No formal agreement 
reached with Business 
Units regarding target 
spend, this will be done for 
2013/14. The amount spent 
on the Woman Owned 
Engineering companies 
increased to R262.9m, a 
31% increase on 2011/12.

Create job 
opportunities in 
PRASA through 
suppliers

Fixed Term 
Equivalent 
opportunities 
created

3140 5986 90.64% Most jobs created were on 
the large capital projects of 
Accelerated Rolling Stock, 
Bridge City, Greenview – 
Pienaarspoort and NSIP.

Risk Management Risk Management 
Strategy

Business Continuity 
Management 
Systems

Risk reviews and 
monitoring of risks

Quarterly

(As agreed with 
BOC - 100% 
Business Unit & 
Functional Risk 
Assessments

77%

(100% entities 
completed 
and 75% of 
Functional 
areas)

-23.00% Risk assessment on 
Strategy department is 
not completed due to non-
availability of department.

100% Monitoring 
of Strategic 
Risk)

86% -14.00% Some mitigation plans 
submitted did not have risk 
indicators to measure the 
progress on risk mitigation.

Unqualified audit Unqualified audit 
with reduction in 
findings

25% reduction in 
findings.

Unqualified audit 
with increase in 
findings

-43.46% on 
findings.

An increase of 18.46% 
in findings with 61.7% 
of findings in ‘Other 
Important Matters’. 

PRASA
Programme

Output and
Outcomes

Measures Target
2012/13

Performance
2012/13

Variance Reason for
deviation

Training and 
Development

Skills development 
in line with new 
investment

Percentage of direct 
training spend

2.5% 1.7% -0.80% Due to cost saving 
initiatives within rail. Only 
reflect external training. 
External training spend 
increased by 32% on 
2011/12. 

Number of trainees 2070 1651 -20.24% Mostly Protection Services 
learnerships however 
plans for new year will be 
reviewed to meet future 
targets.

Full time technical 
apprenticeships and 
bursaries

430 471 inclusive of 
52 apprentices.

9.53%

DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements of the Passenger 
Rail Agency of South Africa (“PRASA”) and the related information included in this annual report. The financial statements 
presented on pages 36 to 97 have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, 
in the manner required by the Companies Act as amended and include amounts based on judgments and estimates made 
by management.

In terms of the Companies Act and the PFMA, the Directors are responsible to ensure that PRASA keeps full and proper 
records of its financial affairs. The Directors are required to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of 
affairs of the PRASA, its financial results, its performance against pre-determined objectives and its financial position at 
the end of the period.

The Directors are also responsible for the PRASA’s system of internal financial controls. These internal controls are 
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance, as to the reliability of the financial statements to adequately 
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the assets, and to prevent and detect misstatement and loss. Nothing 
has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, 
procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. These financial statements support the 
viability of the PRASA.

The Audit and Risk Committee has evaluated the effectiveness of the PRASA’s internal controls based on the internal and 
external audit reports and considers the systems appropriate to the effective operation of the business. The Audit and 
Risk Committee has reviewed the PRASA’s annual financial statements and recommended their approval to the Board of 
Directors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the fair presentation of financial 
statements in conformity with International Standards on Auditing and the Public Audit Act. Independent auditors were 
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all management meetings, the 
Board of Directors and Committees of the Board. The Directors have no reason to believe that all representations made to 
the independent auditors during their audit are not valid and appropriate. The report of the external auditors is presented 
on page 41 to 44. The annual financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2013 and are signed 
on its behalf by:

MR SB BUTHELEZI       MR TL MONTANA
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD      GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

HATFIELD, PRETORIA
31 July 2013
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The Directors present their report, which forms part of the audited annual financial statements of PRASA for the year 
ended 31 March 2013.

Annual financial statements

This report and the annual financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999), as amended (“PFMA”).

There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Agency will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable. We are not aware, as at the date of this statements of any circumstances, which would render any particulars 
included in the financial report to be misleading or inaccurate.

Nature of business

The Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa is an Agency of the Department of Transport responsible for the provision of 
commuter rail services and long haul passenger rail and bus services. Through its facilities and real estate management 
division, buildings and land are managed, maintained and upgraded. Intersite is a wholly- owned subsidiary of PRASA, 
is responsible for leveraging non-operational and non-strategic assets of PRASA, which is to generate income from the 
exploitation of assets transferred to PRASA by the Minister of Transport.

Going concern

The Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa has prepared its financial statements on a going – concern basis, confirming that 
the entity will be able to meet its financial obligations and finance future operations through a combination of Government 
Funding and Revenue income generated from operations, and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities and 
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERNMENT (“BEE”)

BEE ranks as a priority and is fully integrated into all areas of the Group, and will continue to play a meaningful role in 
stimulating economic growth in South Africa. In line with the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No 
53 of 2003), as well as the Supply Chain Management Policy, various committees have been instituted with representation 
from all divisions, including senior management, to ensure that the process remains transparent and fair at all times. The 
Group is fully committed to use the resources at its disposal to further BEE advancement.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS

Capital Expenditure

Total capital investment to the value of R 6,3 billion (2012: R3,5 billion) was made during the year under review (inclusive 
of buses which were required through a secured loan). These funds were expended mainly towards the upgrading and 
maintenance of the rolling stock, infrastructure upgrades and station developments.

Operational funds

The Agency received an operational subsidiary of R3 526,8 million for the year (2012: R3 339,3 million).

Operational results

Total group income amounted to R3 396,7 million (exclusive of the government subsidy) compared to R2 950,8 million in 
the prior year. Fare revenue for tickets sales was up by 17,7% from the previous year for twelve months has been included 
in the results. Group operating expenditure increased by 20,1%. 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT Continued
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Subsidiaries

The Agency’s interest in its subsidiaries is summarised as follows:

Name Percentage 
Shareholding Issued Capital

Amounts owing
by/(to) Subsidiary
to companies

Attributed share of net profit/loss

Intersite Property Management Services (Pty) Ltd

Ordinary shares
2013 100% R375 (R20,28 million) R3,3 million
2012 100% R375 (R19,63 million) R0,4 million

Autopax Passenger Services (Pty) Ltd

Ordinary shares
2013 100% R601 863 850 R47,5 million (R13,3million)
2012 100% R353 863 850 R23,3 million (R49,8 million)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Control adheres to the principles of good corporate governance as espoused in the PMFA and King III Report 
and Protocol per the Corporate Governance in the Public Sector. This entails the provision of an oversight over the 
management of the assets of PRASA is done diligently and in a fair and transparent manner. Reporting to the Shareholder 
was strengthened by a Corporate Plan and Shareholders Agreement which ensures that the targets, measures and outputs 
are clearly articulated to enhance the Board accountability. The Board, in discharging its obligations and to effectively fulfill 
its fiduciary duties, is supported by the following Committees:

• Audit and Risk Management Committees
•  Finance, Capital Investment and Procurement Committee
•  Human Resources & Remuneration Committee
•  Safety, Health and Environment Committee
•  Governance and Performance Committee

The Board as the Accounting Authority has delegated the day to day management to the Executive Committee under the 
leadership of the Group Chief Executive Officer.

Organizational structure

The organisational structure of the Agency appears on page 16 and 17 of this report

Significant events reported to the Executive Authority

No significant events were reported to the Executive Authority during the year under review.

Protocol for communication with Shareholder

The Executive Authority for PRASA is the Minister of Transport who represents the Shareholder. The Board as the 
Accounting Authority of the Corporation reports to the Minister of Transport. Communication with the Shareholder is 
channeled primarily through the Office of the Chairman. Regular reporting was undertaken in terms of the Shareholders 
Compact.

Post balance sheet events

No material facts or significant circumstances which affect the financial position of the Group have arisen between the 
dated of the Balance Sheet and the production date of this report other than as reflected in this report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT Continued
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Performance against goals

PRASA’s 3 year Corporate Plan defines objectives that are directly linked to PRASA’s mandate as defined in the Legal 
Succession Act. These objectives are used to measure the performance of the Agency as they appear on page 38 to 46 of 
this report.

BOARD OF CONTROL

The affairs of the Agency are maintained by the Board of Control, which includes members from National Treasury and the 
Department of Transport. The Minister of Transport appoints Board Members including Chairman.

The following directors and members served on the Board of Control.

Title Name Position Appointment Comments

Mr. S Buthelezi Chairperson 01 April 2011
Ms. Z B Gasa Non Executive 01 April 2011 Resigned 31 July 2013
Mr. F Salanje Non Executive 01 April 2011
Mr. N Khena Non Executive 01 April 2011 Resigned 30 November 2012
Mr. T Gcabashe Non Executive 01 April 2011
Ms. M Nkoenyane Non Executive 01 April 2011 Resigned 28 February 2013
Ms N Mxenge Non Executive 01 March 2012
Mr. K Pillay Non Executive 01 April 2011 Resigned 30 November 2012
Mr. X George SALGA 01 April 2011
Mr. M Vilana Department of Transport 01 April 2011
Ms. M Moore National Treasury 01 April 2011
Mr. T L Montana Chief Executive Officer (ex officio) 01 April 2011

Director’s emoluments

Please refer to note 26 of the Annual Financial Statements

Internal controls

Internal controls and systems are now designed to provide adequate assurance of the integrity and reliability of the annual 
financial statements, to safeguard and maintain accountability of its assets and to minimize the risk of fraud.

Board committees

The Board has five committees, which assist in the good governance, allow for detailed consideration of major issues, 
provide advice on sensitive matters to the Board and examine matters that may be referred to it by the Board. Each 
Committee adopted a charter which is reviewed annually.

Audit and Risk Management Committees

Title Name Position Comments

Mr. M Salanje Chairperson
Mr. T Gcabashe Member
Mr. N Khena Member Resigned 30 November 2012
Ms. M Moore Member
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The Audit and Risk Committee supports the Board in discharging its Corporate Governance responsibilities in relation to:

- Accounting policies;
 - Finance reporting;
 - Internal control;
 - Business ethics and fraud prevention polices;
 - Risk management;
 - Ensuring integrity of internal audit function.

This Committee further monitors and approves the application of our financial resources, determines the level of the 
budget required to deliver the Business Plan objectives.

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises of three independent non Executive members. Head of Internal audit and External 
auditors attended meetings by invitation.

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

Title Name Position Comments

Ms. M Nkoenyane Chairperson Resigned 28 February 2013
Ms. N Mxenge Member/ Chairperson Appointed 01 March 2012 / 01 March 2013
Mr. X George Member
Mr. M Salanje Member

The HR Committee supports the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to:

-  Direct authority for, or consideration and recommendation to the Agency of, matters relating to inter alia general staff 
policies, remuneration (executive and directors’ fees), bonuses, service contracts and retirements funds;

 - Staff well being and sound corporate culture; and

 - Promotion of an efficient and effective workforce

Finance Capital and Procurement Committee

Title Name Position Comments

Dr. Z B Gasa Chairperson Resigned 31 July 2013
Mr. M Vilana Member
Mr. X George Member
Ms. M Nkoenyane Member Resigned 28 February 2013

The FCIP Committee supports the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to:

-  Monitoring the implementation of procurement policies and processes;

- Successful negotiation of price reduction in prices charged;

 - Fostering black economic empowerment (BEE) and small, medium and micro enterprises (SMME’s);

-  Adjudication of all capital investments projects and tenders over R100 million; and

 -  Ensuring adherence to the principles contained in the framework for supply chain management issued by National 
Treasury.

Safety, Health and Environment Committee

Title Name Position Comments

Mr. N Khena Chairperson Resigned 30 November 2012
Dr. Z B Gasa Member Resigned 31 July 2013
Mr. T Gcabashe Member
Mr. X George Member / Chairperson Appointed 01 December 2012
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The SHE Committee supports the Board in discharging its responsibilities for the safety of commuters, employees and 
others who work and use the network and for environmental protection. In discharging its responsibilities, the Committee:

 -  Ensures that the Agency has effective safety and environmental policies, systems and programs to meet all legislative 
responsibilities and to develop and sustain a safety and environment culture.

 -  The SHE Committee has the responsibility to ensure that the commuter rail environment is safe, healthy and clean to 
both employees and the users of the system.

Governance and Performance Committee

Title Name Position Comments

Mr. S Buthelezi Chairperson
Mr. M Salanje Member
Ms. M Nkoenyane Member Resigned 28 February 2013
Mr. N Khena Member Resigned 30 November 2012
Mr. X George Member Appointed 01 December 2012
Ms. N Mxenge Member Appointed 01 March 2013
Dr. Z B Gaza Member

-  The objective of the Governance Committee is to ensure that PRASA is governed in a way that is efficient, responsible, 
transparent, and accountable to the shareholder and the taxpayer. The Committee has incorporated in its Terms of 
Reference, all the items that are dealt with by the Social and Ethics Committee.

-   The PFMA further imposes fiduciary duties to the Board including a duty of care and skill in managing the financial 
affairs of the corporation

 - The Board is also obliged to maintain effective and transparent systems of internal controls, including internal audit.

 -  To ensure that institutional arrangements within the Group is well understood and unambiguous for the effective 
discharge of the corporation’s mandate as contained in the Legal Succession to the South African Transport Services 
Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No 38 of 2008), read with the PFMA.

 -  To oversee and ensure performance of the Agency in line with the approved Business Plan and Performance Agreement 
between the Agency and the Executive Authority.

-  Monitoring Compliance to IT Governance.

Board of Control Meetings1

Names 31 May 2012 24 July 2012 29 Nov 2012 27 Feb 2013

S Buthelezi P P P P
ZB Gasa P P P P
NA Khena P P A R
TS Gcabashe P A P P
M Moore P P P A
M Nkoenyane P P A A
X George P A P A
K Pillay P A A R
M Vilana P A A P
GM Salanje P P P P
TL Montana P P P P
N Mxenge P A P P

1 P - Present
 A - Absent
 R - Resignation
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Board of Control Strategic Workshop

Names 28 Nov 2012

S Buthelezi P
ZB Gasa P
NA Khena A
TS Gcabashe P
M Moore P
N Nkoenyane P
X George P
K Pillay A
M Vilana A
GM Salanje P
TL Montana P
N Mxenge P

Annual General Meeting

Names 23 Nov 2012

S Buthelezi P
ZB Gasa P
NA Khena P
TS Gcabashe A
M Moore P
N Nkoenyane A
X George P
K Pillay P
M Vilana P
GM Salanje P
TL Montana P
N Mxenge A

Audit and Risk Management Committee Meetings

Names 17 May 2012 31 May 2012 24 July 2012 22 Nov 2012 21 Feb 2013

GM Salanje P P P P P
NA Khena P P P R R
TS Gcabashe P P P P P
M Moore P P P P P
TL Montana P P P P P

Audit and Risk Management Committee Workshops

Names 04 April 2012 09 May 2012

GM Salanje P P
NA Khena p P
TS Gcabashe P P
M Moore P P
TL Montana P P
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Finance, Capital and Procurement Committee Meetings

Names 23 May 2012 19 July 2012 06 Nov 2012 25 Feb 2013

ZB Gasa P P P P
X George P P P P
TL Montana P P P P
M Vilana A P P P
M Nkoeyane P P P P

Special Finance, Capital and Procurement Committee

Names 28 Nov 2012

ZB Gasa P
X George P
TL Montana A
M Vilana A
M Nkoeyane P

Finance, Capital and Procurement Committee Workshop

Names 16 Nov 2012

ZB Gasa P
X George P
TL Montana P
M Vilana A
M Nkoeyane P

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee Meetings

Names 15 April 2012 14 May 2012 06 Nov 2012 22 Nov 2012 25 Feb 2013

M Nkoeyane P P P P P
GM Salanje P P P P P
X George P P P P P
K Pillay P P P P R
TL Montana P P P P P
N Mxenge - - P P P

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee Workshop

Names 11 May 2012

M Nkoeyane P
GM Salanje P
X George P
K Pillay P
TL Montana P
N Mxenge P
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Safety, Health & Environment Committee Meeting

Names 21-June-2012

NA Khena P
ZB Gasa P
TL Montana P
T Gcabashe P

Governance and Performance Committee Meetings

Names 29-May-2012 26-Nov-2012

S Buthelezi P P
GM Salanje P P
ZB Gasa P P
M Nkoeyane P P
NA Khena P A
TL Montana P P
V Twala - P
B Boshielo - A
N Mxenge - P

DIRECTORS’ REPORT Continued

Company Secretary

Mr L. Zide served as Company Secretary throughout the year.

Registered Address Postal address Telephone
PRASA House Private Bag x101 (012) 748-7000
1040 Burnett Street Braamfontein
Hatfield  2017
Pretoria

Bankers

Amalgamated Banks of South Africa - ABSA
Investec Bank
Rand Merchant Bank
Standard Bank
First National Bank

Website

Website: www.prasa.com

CORPORATE DETAILS
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CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENTS 
OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2013

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

Notes 2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

ASSETS

 20 075 036  26 341 449 Non-current assets  26 492 188  20 516 356 
18 591 733    22 829 449 Property, plant and equipment 4  23 676 974  19 458 138 

  102 253   239 655 Intangible assets 5   239 729   102 350 
  924 270  2 544 147 Investment property 6  2 544 147   924 270 

  7 261   7 127 Defined benefit plan assets 17   7 127   7 261 
 -  - Deferred taxation 30.3  -    126 

  24 211   24 211 Trade and other receivables 9   24 211   24 211 
  425 308   696 860 Investment in subsidiaries 8  -  - 

 3 862 729  5 348 040 Current assets  5 418 654  3 961 741 
  132 438   205 720 Trade and other receivables 9   190 259   160 350 

 -  - Assets classified as held for sale 7  -   14 508 
  209 569   229 204 Inventories 10   241 927   216 202 

 3 520 722  4 913 116 Cash and cash equivalents 11  4 986 468  3 570 681 

 23 937 765  31 689 489 Total assets  31 910 842  24 478 097 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 2 897 293  2 750 491 Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Entity  2 330 353  2 487 089 
 4 248 258  4 248 258 Share capital 12  4 248 258  4 248 258 

 (1 350 965)  (1 497 767) Accumulated loss  (1 917 905)  (1 761 169)

 17 057 484  22 146 701 Non-current liabilities  22 595 291  17 736 728 
 -  - Loans and borrowings 13   92 759   207 701 

  5 759  - Discounted lease agreements 14  -   5 759 
  250 430   350 110 Provision for claims 15   350 110   250 430 

  20 916   17 043 Employee benefit obligations 16   17 261   21 183 
 16 780 379  21 779 548 Capital subsidy and grants 18  22 135 161  17 251 655 

 3 982 988  6 792 297 Current liabilities  6 985 198  4 254 280 
 2 386 546  4 785 580 Trade and other payables 19  4 823 526  2 487 934 

 -  - Short-term portion of loans and borrowings 13   40 493   56 643 
  14 839   5 759 Short-term portion of discounted lease agreements 14   5 759   14 839 

  166 953   207 015 Short-term portion of provision for claims 15   207 015   166 953 
 1 414 650  1 793 943 Short-term portion of capital subsidy and grants 18  1 908 405  1 527 911 

 23 937 765  31 689 489 Total equity and liabilities  31 910 842  24 478 097 
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

Notes 2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

ASSETS

 20 075 036  26 341 449 Non-current assets  26 492 188  20 516 356 
18 591 733    22 829 449 Property, plant and equipment 4  23 676 974  19 458 138 

  102 253   239 655 Intangible assets 5   239 729   102 350 
  924 270  2 544 147 Investment property 6  2 544 147   924 270 

  7 261   7 127 Defined benefit plan assets 17   7 127   7 261 
 -  - Deferred taxation 30.3  -    126 

  24 211   24 211 Trade and other receivables 9   24 211   24 211 
  425 308   696 860 Investment in subsidiaries 8  -  - 

 3 862 729  5 348 040 Current assets  5 418 654  3 961 741 
  132 438   205 720 Trade and other receivables 9   190 259   160 350 

 -  - Assets classified as held for sale 7  -   14 508 
  209 569   229 204 Inventories 10   241 927   216 202 

 3 520 722  4 913 116 Cash and cash equivalents 11  4 986 468  3 570 681 

 23 937 765  31 689 489 Total assets  31 910 842  24 478 097 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 2 897 293  2 750 491 Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Entity  2 330 353  2 487 089 
 4 248 258  4 248 258 Share capital 12  4 248 258  4 248 258 

 (1 350 965)  (1 497 767) Accumulated loss  (1 917 905)  (1 761 169)

 17 057 484  22 146 701 Non-current liabilities  22 595 291  17 736 728 
 -  - Loans and borrowings 13   92 759   207 701 

  5 759  - Discounted lease agreements 14  -   5 759 
  250 430   350 110 Provision for claims 15   350 110   250 430 

  20 916   17 043 Employee benefit obligations 16   17 261   21 183 
 16 780 379  21 779 548 Capital subsidy and grants 18  22 135 161  17 251 655 

 3 982 988  6 792 297 Current liabilities  6 985 198  4 254 280 
 2 386 546  4 785 580 Trade and other payables 19  4 823 526  2 487 934 

 -  - Short-term portion of loans and borrowings 13   40 493   56 643 
  14 839   5 759 Short-term portion of discounted lease agreements 14   5 759   14 839 

  166 953   207 015 Short-term portion of provision for claims 15   207 015   166 953 
 1 414 650  1 793 943 Short-term portion of capital subsidy and grants 18  1 908 405  1 527 911 

 23 937 765  31 689 489 Total equity and liabilities  31 910 842  24 478 097 

CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENTS OF 
COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

Notes 2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

 5 340 305  5 908 443 Revenue  6 636 962  6 013 341 
  299 633   327 640 Operating leases rental income 20.1   310 117   284 763 

 1 701 342  2 054 004 Fare revenue 21  2 756 286  2 341 579 
 3 339 330  3 526 799 Government subsidy 22  3 526 799  3 339 330 

 -  - Management fee 23   43 760   47 669 

 1 540 798  1 602 248 Other income  1 783 772  1 712 172 
 1 322 103  1 382 794 Capital subsidy and grants amortised 18  1 497 256  1 435 364 

  218 695   219 454 Sundry income 27   286 516   276 808 

 (6 367 697)  (7 692 790) Operating expenses 25  (8 508 230)  (7 083 223)
 (1 276 712)  (1 367 375) Depreciation and amortisation 4, 5 & 6  (1 487 522)  (1 420 806)

 ( 103 246)  ( 106 852) Derecognition/loss on disposal of assets 24  ( 68 778)  ( 112 541)
 ( 34 330)   1 222 Impairment (losses)/reversal recognised 4   1 737  ( 34 330)

  773 821  1 264 798 Fair valuation of investment properties 6  1 264 798   773 821 
   65   3 673 Actuarial gain 16   3 721    104 

 ( 126 996)  ( 386 633) Loss before investment income and finance cost  ( 373 540)  ( 151 462)

 ( 14 016)  ( 7 545) Finance cost 28  ( 33 108)  ( 41 703)
  161 613   247 376 Finance income 29   250 038   164 234 

  20 601  ( 146 802) Profit/(Loss) before taxation  ( 156 610)  ( 28 931)

 -  - Taxation 30  (  126)  - 

  20 601  ( 146 802) Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income for the year  ( 156 736)  ( 28 931)

Increase in the value of assets 
(excluding investment property) 
grew by 25% from R19.4 Billion
to R24 billion
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CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENTS 
OF CHANGES IN 
EQUITY FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2013

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

Notes 2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

ASSETS

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

 4 248 258  4 248 258 Balance at the beginning of the year  4 248 258  4 248 258 
 -  - Movements during the year  -  - 

 4 248 258  4 248 258 Balance at the end of the year  4 248 258  4 248 258 

ACCUMULATED LOSS

 (1 371 566)  (1 350 965) Balance at the beginning of the year  (1 761 169)  (1 732 238)
  20 601  ( 146 802) Profit/(Loss) for the year  ( 156 736)  ( 28 931)

 (1 350 965)  (1 497 767) Balance at the end of the year  (1 917 905)  (1 761 169)

 2 897 293  2 750 491 Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Entity  2 330 353  2 487 089 
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

Notes 2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

ASSETS

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

 4 248 258  4 248 258 Balance at the beginning of the year  4 248 258  4 248 258 
 -  - Movements during the year  -  - 

 4 248 258  4 248 258 Balance at the end of the year  4 248 258  4 248 258 

ACCUMULATED LOSS

 (1 371 566)  (1 350 965) Balance at the beginning of the year  (1 761 169)  (1 732 238)
  20 601  ( 146 802) Profit/(Loss) for the year  ( 156 736)  ( 28 931)

 (1 350 965)  (1 497 767) Balance at the end of the year  (1 917 905)  (1 761 169)

 2 897 293  2 750 491 Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Entity  2 330 353  2 487 089 

CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENTS OF 
CASH FLOWS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

Notes 2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

Cash flow from operating activities

 ( 824 909)  (1 536 800) Operating cash flows before working capital changes  (1 556 865)  ( 810 852)
 ( 236 239)  2 563 710 Changes in working capital  2 551 359  ( 186 751)

 (1 061 148)  1 026 910 Cash (utilised)/generated from operations 32   994 494  ( 997 603)
 ( 14 016)  ( 7 545) Finance cost  ( 33 108)  ( 41 703)

 (1 075 164)  1 019 365 Net cash (used)/generated from operating activities   961 386  (1 039 306)

Cash flow from investing activities

  161 613   247 376 Investment income - interest received   250 038   164 234 
 (3 464 068)  (6 043 972) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (6 167 372)  (3 473 260)

   530   2 503 Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment   64 153   1 380 
 ( 2 799)  ( 161 733) Acquisition of intangible asset  ( 161 733)  ( 2 913)

 -  ( 248 000) Increase in investment of subsidiary  -  - 
 ( 5 827)  ( 23 552) Increase in loans to/from subsidiaries  -  - 

 (3 310 551)  (6 227 378) Net cash used in investing activities  (6 014 914)  (3 310 559)

 Cash flow from financing activities

 -  - Repayment of other financial liabilities  ( 131 092)  ( 204 046)
 ( 14 836)  ( 5 759) Repayment of discounted lease agreements  ( 5 759)  ( 14 836)

 ( 130 210)  ( 155 090) Repayment on insurance claims  ( 155 090)  ( 130 210)
 6 143 984  6 761 256 Capital subsidy and grants received 18  6 761 256  6 143 985 

 5 998 938  6 600 407  6 469 315  5 794 893 

 1 613 223  1 392 394 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  1 415 787  1 445 028 
 1 907 499  3 520 722 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3 570 681  2 125 653 

 3 520 722  4 913 116 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11  4 986 468  3 570 681 
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NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013

1 Reporting entity

  The Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa (PRASA) is governed by the Legal Succession to the South African Transport Services Act, 2008 (Act No 
38 of 2008). The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as “the Group”). 

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance 

  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(SA GAAP), the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999) and specific regulations issued by National Treasury.

2.2 Basis of measurement

  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets and liabilities which are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

  The consolidated financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the Entity’s functional currency. All financial information 
presented in Rand has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

  In the application of the entity’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. Refer Note 2.4.1 for Investment Properties, Note 15 for Provision on Insurance Claims, Note 16 for Employee Benefit 
Obligations and Note 17 for Defined Benefit Plan Assets.

2.4.1 Gain on fair valuation of investment property

  During the year under review an exceptional gain of R1 264.8 million (2012: R773.8 million) was realised through the profit and loss account due to 
the fair valuation on investment property. (Refer Note 6).

  The value of investment properties has been determined using the comparable sales method as well as capitalisation of net income method. These 
methods are deemed appropriate for valuing both vacant and leased properties.

3 Accounting policies

3.1 Significant accounting policies

  The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, and have 
been applied consistently by all Group entities.

3.2 Basis of consolidation

3.2.1 Subsidiaries

  Subsidiaries are those entities over whose financial and operating policies the Group has the power to exercise control, so as to obtain benefits 
from their activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are taken into account.

 The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the operations of the Group and its subsidiaries.

  Results of subsidiaries are included from the date control commences to the date control ceases. Inter-company transactions have been eliminated 
on consolidation.

 The investment in subsidiaries in the Entity’s separate financial statements are carried at cost less impairment losses.

3.2.2 Acquisitions from entities under common control

  Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that controls the Group are 
accounted for at date of acquisition without restating comparatives. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts 
previously accounted for in the Group controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The excess or shortfall on the net amounts at 
acquisition date, of the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and the consideration transferred, measured in accordance with SA 
GAAP, is recognised in equity.

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

3.3.1 Recognition and measurement of owned assets

 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset:

 • when the Group has full control over it; and

 • it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group; and 

 • the asset has a cost, or other determined value which can be measured reliably.
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  Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, including all directly attributable costs necessary to bring the asset to its required 
working condition for its intended use. Subsequently property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

  When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) 
of property, plant and equipment.

 The amount capitalised, as part of the asset’s cost, is the contractual amount, discounted to the date of initial recognition.

  Property, plant and equipment ceases to be recognised when it is disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

  Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and are recognised as income or expenses in profit or loss.

 The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the assets’ future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group.

3.3.2 Subsequent costs

  The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is 
incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.  All other costs are recognised in profit or loss as an expense when incurred.

3.3.3 Depreciation

  Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the 
assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors.

  In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken into 
account. 

 Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

  Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment commences from the month the items are available for use. Depreciation is recognised on a 
straight-line basis to write off the cost of assets to their residual values over the following estimated useful lives.  Land is not depreciated as it is 
deemed to have an indefinite life.

 Asset class Useful life

 •  Facilities 5 to 50 years

 •  Rolling stock

  -  Undercarriages 33 years

   -  Components 12 years

 •  Infrastructure 2 to 110 years

 •  Moveable assets and workshop equipment 3 to 10 years

 •  Buses 8 years

 Depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

  Assets under construction represent work in progress and are transferred to the appropriate category of assets on receipt of completion certificates, 
when the asset is available for use. Depreciation commences on the first day of the month of transfer.

3.4 Intangible assets

3.4.1 Recognition and measurement of owned assets

 Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Cost includes any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.

 After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at their cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

  Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred.

 Development costs of intellectual property or copyrights are recognised as an asset when the following conditions are met:

 •  Technical and commercial feasibility of the product;

 •  When the Group demonstrates the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

 •  When the Group demonstrates the ability to use or sell the intangible asset (intellectual property);

 •  There are sufficient resources to complete the project and to use the asset;

 •  The Group can demonstrate how the projects will generate future economic benefits; and 

 •  The cost can be measured reliably.

 Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
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3.4.2 Subsequent costs

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All 
other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

3.4.3 Amortisation

  Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised over that useful life of the product. Amortisation commences when the asset is available for 
use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

  The useful life of an intangible asset is reviewed annually, and if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes shall be accounted for as 
a change in accounting estimates. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 Asset class Useful life

 •  Copyright 20 years

 •  Software 10 years

3.5 Investment property

3.5.1 Recognition and measurement of investment property

 Investment properties are held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by PRASA.

 Investment properties are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured and carried at fair value.

  Fair value is based on valuation performed by appointed independent registered valuer(s) taking into account factors such as the property growth 
and market in the surrounding area. The fair value of the investment properties reflects the market conditions at the balance sheet date. Changes 
in fair values are recorded in profit and loss as an investment property fair value adjustment.

  On disposal of an investment property, or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and future economic benefits are no longer expected from 
the property concerned, it will be derecognised. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying value is recognised in the 
comprehensive income statement in the period of the retirement or disposal.

  Transfer to or from investment property will be made when there is a change in use of the property. The commencement of owner-occupation for 
the property would result in a transfer of the investment property to self-occupied property, included in the category of asset named “Property, 
Plant and Equipment”. On the other hand, the end of owner-occupation of a property would result in a transfer from the self-occupied property 
which is included in Property, Plant and Equipment to the category of asset known as “Investment Properties”.

  For a transfer from investment property which is carried at fair value to self-occupied property, the fair value of the property at the date of change 
in use would be treated as deemed cost of the property for subsequent accounting purposes.

3.5.2 Subsequent costs

  The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of investment property the cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred 
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs are recognised in profit or loss as an expense as incurred.

3.6 Assets classified as held for sale

  Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their 
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

3.7 Impairment

3.7.1 Financial assets

  A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective 
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a 
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

  Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group 
on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise or indications that a debtor will enter bankruptcy.

  An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

  Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively 
in groups that show similar credit risk characteristics.

 All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

  An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. For 
financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

3.7.2 Non-financial assets

  The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets other than inventory and deferred taxation assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, its recoverable amount is 
estimated.
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  The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the expected 
future cash flows from the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-taxation discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

  A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and the recoverable 
amount increases as a result of a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

  The increased carrying amount shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had 
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

3.8 Inventories

  Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Inventories are held as spare parts for maintenance or non-operational 
additions on rolling stock and adjustments to net realisable value are recognised by raising an appropriate provision for obsolete and damaged 
items. Cost is determined on the weighted average method.

3.9 Provisions

  Provisions are made for unavoidable liabilities of which the amount can be estimated, but the settlement is uncertain. These provisions are 
recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be 
made.

  The carrying amount of each provision is reviewed at reporting date and adjusted, if necessary, to reflect the best estimate of the consideration 
required to settle the present obligation as at that date. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the 
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The discount rate is a pre-taxation rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The discount rate does not reflect risks for which future cash 
flow estimates have been adjusted.  The unwinding of discount is recognised in finance costs.

  A provision is reversed to the extent that it is no longer probable that a future outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

3.10 Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and these benefits can be reliably measured. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

3.10.1 Services

  Revenue from the rendering of passenger services is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period the service is rendered. 
It comprises of ticket sales to train or bus commuters for passenger and long distance journeys rendered during the period.

3.10.2 Operating lease income

  Revenue from property management activities is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic 
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the usage from the leased asset is diminished.

  Recoveries of operating costs (for example, rates and taxes, water and electricity) are recognised as income, as the costs are charged to lessees 
and are also included in Revenue (refer note 3.16).

3.11 Finance income

 Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method.

3.12 Government grants and subsidy

  Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attached to them - such 
as ensuring safe, reliable and effective movement of people to contribute to South Africa’s social and economic development - and that the grants 
will be received.

  Where grants and subsidies relate to the purchase of property, plant and equipment they are classified as non-current liabilities and are recognised 
on a systematic basis, as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate. Other 
government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support 
to the entity with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

  Grants received for acquisition of non-depreciable assets will be released to comprehensive income statement on impairment or disposal of the 
asset.

3.13 Expenses

3.13.1 Financing costs

  Financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings and trade payables calculated using the effective interest method and unwinding of 
discount.

 The interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
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3.13.2 Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take 
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.13.3 Lease payments

 Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

3.14 Income taxation

 Income taxation expense comprises current and deferred taxation.

3.14.1 Current taxation

  PRASA is exempt from the payment of any taxation, transfer duty, stamp duty or levy that would have been payable (excluding customs and excise, 
and VAT), in terms of section 31(4) of the Legal Succession to the South African Transport Services Act, 2008 (Act No 38 of 2008).

  Intersite Asset Management and Autopax Passenger Services are subsidiaries of the Group and are liable for taxation, therefore subject to the 
Income Tax Act. Income taxation is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which 
case it is recognised in equity. Current taxation is the expected taxation payable on the taxable income for the year, using taxation rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to taxation payable in respect of previous years.

3.14.2 Deferred taxation

  Deferred taxation is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred taxation is measured at the taxation rates that are expected to be applied to 
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

  Deferred taxation is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the 
extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

  Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current taxation liabilities and assets, and they relate 
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable Group, or on different taxation entities, but they intend to settle current 
taxation liabilities and assets on a net basis or their taxation assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

  A deferred taxation asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can 
be utilised, and reviewed annually to assess probability of recovery.

3.15 Employee benefits

3.15.1 Short-term employee benefits

  The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised in profit or loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The 
accrual for employee entitlements to salaries, performance bonuses and annual leave represent the amounts for which the Group has a present 
obligation to pay as a result of the employee’s services provided. The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on expected 
salary levels.

3.15.2 Defined benefit plans

  The Group operates a defined benefit plan with regards to pension benefits upon retirement of employees, the assets of which are held in separate 
trustee funds administered by Metropolitan Health Group (Pty) Ltd. Another defined benefit plan for medical scheme benefits for employees and 
pensioners exists under administration of the Transmed Medical Scheme. These funds are valued by professional independent actuaries.

  The benefit cost and obligations under the defined benefit fund are determined using the projected unit credit method on an annual basis. The 
benefit costs are recognised in profit or loss. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

  The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior years; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value, and any unrecognised past-service cost and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting 
date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity 
approximating to the terms of the related pension fund liability.

  Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits have already vested, and are otherwise amortised on a straight-line basis 
over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

  The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the 
plan assets; less unrecognised past service cost. Any resulting asset is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future 
contributions to plan.

72



NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

3.15.3 Defined contribution plan

  Under the defined contribution structures, fixed contributions payable by the Group and members are accumulated to provide retirement benefits 
through a provident fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay any further contributions other than these fixed contributions. 
Contributions to any defined contribution plan are expensed as incurred.

3.16 Operating leases

  The Group, as lessor, enters into a variety of operating lease agreements with third parties in order to maximise the inflow of economic benefits 
from Government assets. Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the Group are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

3.17 Financial instruments

  Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of another entity. They include cash 
at bank, receivables, investments, payables, derivative financial instruments and financial guarantees.

3.17.1 Fair value

  The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), 
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other 
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and 
relying as little as possible on Group-specific inputs.

3.17.2 Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

  Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss are initially measured at fair value plus, for those financial assets and 
liabilities not measured at fair value to profit or loss, transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument, 
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual arrangements. The subsequent measurement of financial instruments is dealt with below. 
           
The Group derecognises a financial instrument when and only when:

 • the contractual rights or obligations to the cash flows from the financial instrument expire; or

 • it transfers the financial instrument.

3.17.2.1 Trade and other receivables

 Trade and other receivables originated by the Group are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment losses.

3.17.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 
consists of cash and cash equivalents as defined. Cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment losses.

3.17.2.3 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

3.17.2.4 Interest-bearing borrowings

  Interest-bearing borrowings (discounted lease agreements) are, subsequent to initial recognition, measured using the effective interest method.

  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities if they satisfy the following criteria: they are expected to be settled in the entity’s normal operating 
cycle; when they are held primarily for the purpose of being traded; when they are due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet 
date; or when the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet 
date.

3.18 Deferred income

  Deferred income represents rental received in advance in respect of certain lease agreements and is recognised as income over the period of each 
lease agreement on a straight-line basis.

3.19 Income received in advance

 Income on ticket sales for the rendering of passenger services in a future period is recognised as revenue received in advance at year-end.

3.20 Share capital

  Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as 
a deduction from equity, net of any taxation effects.

3.21 Related parties

  Related party transactions are shown at arm’s length in accordance with IAS 24 -Related Party Disclosures - and SAICA Circular on related party 
disclosures for State-owned entities. Related parties are classified in terms of those listed in the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 
of 1999) in schedules 1 (Constitutional Institutions), 2 (Major Public entities) and 3 (Other Public entities).
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Land Facilities Rolling 
stock

Infrastructure
assets

Moveables & 
workshop

Buses & 
vehicles

Assets under 
construction

Total

R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

4  Property, plant and equipment

GROUP

Carrying amount at 1 April 2011  1 176 478  3 598 246  6 976 940  2 074 098   108 595  1 170 419  2 248 005    17 352 781 

Cost  1 176 478  4 578 031  10 631 572  3 450 954   248 938  1 302 660  2 248 005  23 636 638 

Accumulated depreciation  -  ( 972 316)  (3 544 103)  (1 376 856)  ( 140 343)  ( 132 241)  -  (6 165 859)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 469)  ( 110 529)  -  -  -  -  ( 117 998)

Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  3 473 261  3 473 261 

Capitalisations    756   326 837  1 554 292   134 073   16 453   31 695  (2 064 106)  - 

Transfer (to)/from investment property  -   187 076  -  -  -  -  -   187 076 

Impairment loss recognised  -  -  ( 34 330)  -  -  -  -  ( 34 330)

Disposals/derecognitions  ( 4 105)  ( 5 480)  ( 90 912)  ( 3 270)  (  435)  ( 9 720)  -  ( 113 922)

Depreciation charge for the year  -  ( 152 585)  ( 875 331)  ( 160 051)  ( 48 832)  ( 169 929)  -  (1 406 728)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2012  1 173 129  3 954 094  7 530 659  2 044 850   75 781  1 022 465  3 657 160  19 458 138 

Cost  1 173 129  5 084 628  11 761 256  3 564 341   260 129  1 323 512  3 657 160  26 824 155 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (1 123 103)  (4 104 981)  (1 518 656)  ( 184 245)  ( 301 047)  -  (7 232 032)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 431)  ( 125 616)  (  835)  (  103)  -  -  ( 133 985)

Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  6 167 372  6 167 372 

Capitalisations  -   714 737  1 441 260   411 826   141 185   92 129  (2 801 137)  - 

Transfer (to)/from investment 
property/assets held for sale  ( 355 079)    905  ( 354 174)

Impairment loss recognised  -  -   1 223  -  -    514  -   1 737 

Disposals/derecognitions  -  (  75)  ( 109 239)  (  39)  (  18)  ( 23 560)  -  ( 132 931)

Depreciation charge for the year  -  ( 193 722)  ( 926 684)  ( 157 820)  ( 48 007)  ( 136 935)  -  (1 463 168)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2013  1 173 129  4 119 955  7 937 219  2 298 817   168 941   955 518  7 023 395   23 676 974 

Cost  1 173 129  5 297 185  12 814 637  3 978 273   413 975  1 391 742  7 023 395  32 092 336 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (1 169 978)  (4 770 478)  (1 678 218)  ( 244 952)  ( 436 224)  -  (8 299 850)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 252)  ( 106 940)  ( 1 238)  (  82)  -  -  ( 115 512)

NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued
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Land Facilities Rolling 
stock

Infrastructure
assets

Moveables & 
workshop

Buses & 
vehicles

Assets under 
construction

Total

R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

4  Property, plant and equipment

GROUP

Carrying amount at 1 April 2011  1 176 478  3 598 246  6 976 940  2 074 098   108 595  1 170 419  2 248 005    17 352 781 

Cost  1 176 478  4 578 031  10 631 572  3 450 954   248 938  1 302 660  2 248 005  23 636 638 

Accumulated depreciation  -  ( 972 316)  (3 544 103)  (1 376 856)  ( 140 343)  ( 132 241)  -  (6 165 859)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 469)  ( 110 529)  -  -  -  -  ( 117 998)

Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  3 473 261  3 473 261 

Capitalisations    756   326 837  1 554 292   134 073   16 453   31 695  (2 064 106)  - 

Transfer (to)/from investment property  -   187 076  -  -  -  -  -   187 076 

Impairment loss recognised  -  -  ( 34 330)  -  -  -  -  ( 34 330)

Disposals/derecognitions  ( 4 105)  ( 5 480)  ( 90 912)  ( 3 270)  (  435)  ( 9 720)  -  ( 113 922)

Depreciation charge for the year  -  ( 152 585)  ( 875 331)  ( 160 051)  ( 48 832)  ( 169 929)  -  (1 406 728)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2012  1 173 129  3 954 094  7 530 659  2 044 850   75 781  1 022 465  3 657 160  19 458 138 

Cost  1 173 129  5 084 628  11 761 256  3 564 341   260 129  1 323 512  3 657 160  26 824 155 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (1 123 103)  (4 104 981)  (1 518 656)  ( 184 245)  ( 301 047)  -  (7 232 032)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 431)  ( 125 616)  (  835)  (  103)  -  -  ( 133 985)

Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  6 167 372  6 167 372 

Capitalisations  -   714 737  1 441 260   411 826   141 185   92 129  (2 801 137)  - 

Transfer (to)/from investment 
property/assets held for sale  ( 355 079)    905  ( 354 174)

Impairment loss recognised  -  -   1 223  -  -    514  -   1 737 

Disposals/derecognitions  -  (  75)  ( 109 239)  (  39)  (  18)  ( 23 560)  -  ( 132 931)

Depreciation charge for the year  -  ( 193 722)  ( 926 684)  ( 157 820)  ( 48 007)  ( 136 935)  -  (1 463 168)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2013  1 173 129  4 119 955  7 937 219  2 298 817   168 941   955 518  7 023 395   23 676 974 

Cost  1 173 129  5 297 185  12 814 637  3 978 273   413 975  1 391 742  7 023 395  32 092 336 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (1 169 978)  (4 770 478)  (1 678 218)  ( 244 952)  ( 436 224)  -  (8 299 850)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 252)  ( 106 940)  ( 1 238)  (  82)  -  -  ( 115 512)

NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

Land Facilities Rolling 
stock

Infrastructure
assets

Moveables & 
workshop

Buses & 
vehicles

Assets under 
construction

Total

R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

ENTITY

Carrying amount at 1 April 2011  1 176 478  3 597 685  6 976 940  2 074 046   101 671   166 587  2 248 005  16 341 412 

Cost  1 176 478  4 576 244  10 631 572  3 448 472   234 524   168 753  2 248 005  22 484 048 

Accumulated depreciation  -  ( 971 090)  (3 544 103)  (1 374 426)  ( 132 853)  ( 2 166)  -  (6 024 638)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 469)  ( 110 529)  -  -  -  -  ( 117 998)

Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  3 464 069  3 464 069 

Capitalisations    756   326 806  1 554 292   134 074   14 105   30 534  (2 060 567)  - 

Transfer (to)/from investment property  -   187 076  -  -  -  -  -   187 076 

Impairment loss recognised  -  -  ( 34 330)  -  -  -  -  ( 34 330)

Disposals/derecognitions  ( 4 105)  ( 5 480)  ( 90 912)  ( 3 270)  (  10)  -  -  ( 103 777)

Depreciation charge for the year  -  ( 152 393)  ( 875 331)  ( 160 000)  ( 46 706)  ( 28 287)  -  (1 262 717)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2012  1 173 129  3 953 694  7 530 659  2 044 850   69 060   168 834  3 651 507  18 591 733 

Cost  1 173 129  5 082 810  11 761 256  3 561 859   244 954   199 286  3 651 507  25 674 801 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (1 121 685)  (4 104 981)  (1 517 009)  ( 175 894)  ( 30 452)  -  (6 950 021)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 431)  ( 125 616)  -  -  -  -  ( 133 047)

Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  6 043 972  6 043 972 

Capitalisations  -   714 734  1 441 261   411 825   133 486  ( 29 222)  (2 672 084)  - 

Transfer (to)/from investment 
property  ( 355 079)  ( 355 079)

Impairment loss recognised  -  -   1 222  -  -  -  -   1 222 

Disposals/derecognitions  -  (  74)  ( 109 239)  (  39)  (  3)  -  -  ( 109 355)

Depreciation charge for the year  -  ( 193 584)  ( 926 684)  ( 157 819)  ( 44 501)  ( 20 456)  -  (1 343 044)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2013  1 173 129  4 119 691  7 937 219  2 298 817   158 042   119 156  7 023 395  22 829 449 

Cost  1 173 129  5 295 367  12 814 637  3 975 790   391 361   170 064  7 023 395  30 843 743 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (1 168 424)  (4 770 478)  (1 675 735)  ( 233 319)  ( 50 908)  -  (7 898 864)

Accumulated impairment losses  -  ( 7 252)  ( 106 940)  ( 1 238)  -  -  -  ( 115 430)

Assets are impaired when they are damaged, in most cases through accidents. Assets are derecognised when components or assets are replaced.
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NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

5  Intangible assets

 Copyright

  14 171   14 171  Cost   14 171   14 171 
 ( 2 151)  ( 2 858) Accumulated amortisation  ( 2 858)  ( 2 151)

  12 020   11 313 Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   11 313   12 020 
 (  707)  (  707) Amortisation  (  707)  (  707)

  11 313   10 606 Carrying amount at the end of the year   10 606   11 313 

  14 171   14 171 Cost   14 171   14 171 
 ( 2 858)  ( 3 565) Accumulated Amortisation  ( 3 565)  ( 2 858)

Copyright includes the product- and tool design of the 10M4 Series 
2 rolling stock model. 

Software

  115 497   117 922 Cost   125 971   123 431 
 ( 14 068)  ( 26 982) Accumulated amortisation  ( 34 934)  ( 21 936)

  101 429   90 940 Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   91 037   101 495 
  2 799   161 733 Additions   161 733   2 913 

 ( 13 288)  ( 23 624) Amortisation  ( 23 647)  ( 13 371)

  90 940   229 049 Carrying amount at the end of the year   229 123   91 037 

  117 922   279 655 Cost   287 703   125 971 
 ( 26 982)  ( 50 606) Accumulated amortisation  ( 58 580)  ( 34 934)

Software comprises customised GIS and ERP software. 

  102 253   239 655   239 729   102 350 

6 Investment property

Land 

  337 525   924 270 Fair valued amount at the beginning of the year   924 270   337 525 
 ( 187 076)   355 079 Facilities transferred (to)/from property, plant and equipment   355 079  ( 187 076)
  773 821  1 264 798 Fair valuation  1 264 798   773 821 

  924 270  2 544 147 Carrying amount at the end of the year  2 544 147   924 270 

  65 648   420 727 Original cost   420 727   65 648 
  858 622  2 123 420 Fair valuation  2 123 420   858 622 

Increase in the 
value of investment 
properties from 
R924mil to R2.555m
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

5  Intangible assets

 Copyright

  14 171   14 171  Cost   14 171   14 171 
 ( 2 151)  ( 2 858) Accumulated amortisation  ( 2 858)  ( 2 151)

  12 020   11 313 Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   11 313   12 020 
 (  707)  (  707) Amortisation  (  707)  (  707)

  11 313   10 606 Carrying amount at the end of the year   10 606   11 313 

  14 171   14 171 Cost   14 171   14 171 
 ( 2 858)  ( 3 565) Accumulated Amortisation  ( 3 565)  ( 2 858)

Copyright includes the product- and tool design of the 10M4 Series 
2 rolling stock model. 

Software

  115 497   117 922 Cost   125 971   123 431 
 ( 14 068)  ( 26 982) Accumulated amortisation  ( 34 934)  ( 21 936)

  101 429   90 940 Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   91 037   101 495 
  2 799   161 733 Additions   161 733   2 913 

 ( 13 288)  ( 23 624) Amortisation  ( 23 647)  ( 13 371)

  90 940   229 049 Carrying amount at the end of the year   229 123   91 037 

  117 922   279 655 Cost   287 703   125 971 
 ( 26 982)  ( 50 606) Accumulated amortisation  ( 58 580)  ( 34 934)

Software comprises customised GIS and ERP software. 

  102 253   239 655   239 729   102 350 

6 Investment property

Land 

  337 525   924 270 Fair valued amount at the beginning of the year   924 270   337 525 
 ( 187 076)   355 079 Facilities transferred (to)/from property, plant and equipment   355 079  ( 187 076)
  773 821  1 264 798 Fair valuation  1 264 798   773 821 

  924 270  2 544 147 Carrying amount at the end of the year  2 544 147   924 270 

  65 648   420 727 Original cost   420 727   65 648 
  858 622  2 123 420 Fair valuation  2 123 420   858 622 

NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

Investment property consists of land at Umgeni Business Park 
in Durban; as well as properties at Berea, Cape Town, Durban, 
Johannesburg Park and Pretoria Stations.

A: Umgeni Business Park
The Umgeni property is rented out to third parties and is on a 
non-cancellable lease of 50 years which ends on 31 July 2047. In 
addition, Umgeni Park has some vacant land which is currently 
held for future development and capital appreciation.
The fair market valuation of the investment property was 
professionally determined by an independent valuer, DDP Valuers 
(2012: DDP Valuers).

B: Station Properties
The properties at the stations comprise commercial areas rented 
out to third parties under operating leases ranging from 1 month 
to 10 years.
PRASA has approved a new property strategy of investing into and 
co-developing station precincts.
The fair market valuation of the station properties was 
professionally determined by Mills Fitchet Magnus Penny, an 
independent valuer.
Both valuers are members of the Institute of Valuers, and they have 
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of 
properties in the relevant locations.

C: PRASA House
Aurecon building (now PRASA House) was classified as investment 
property until the end November 2011 on which date it became 
owner occupied and the approximate fair valued amount of R187.0 
million has been transferred to facilities and is now accounted for 
under Property, Plant and Equipment.

7 Assets classified as held for sale

 -  - Opening balance   14 508      15 308
 -  - Less: impaired -   800
 -  - Less: disposals     13 603   -
 -  - Less: transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment 905  -

 -  - Closing balance -   14 508

All assets previously classified as non current assets held for sale 
have been sold through a combination of public auctions and direct 
sales. No assets have been identified for resale in the coming 
financial year.

8 Investment in subsidiaries
The Company’s subsidiaries are:

8.1 Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd "Intersite"

  88 212   88 212 Unlisted shares and premium at cost  -  - 
 ( 19 633)  ( 20 284) Loan owing to the subsidiary  -  - 

  68 579   67 928 Net investment in subsidiary - -
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NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

Intersite was a subsidiary throughout the year. The loan is interest 
free, unsecured and payable to the subsidiary on demand. The 
holding company's interest in the aggregate after taxation profit of 
the subsidiary amounted to R3.3 million. (2012: Profit R0.4 million).

Ownership (%)    100    100 
Voting power (%)    100    100 
Country of incorporation:  South Africa
Principal activity:  Property management
Authorised share capital
4 000 ordinary shares of R1 each
Issued share capital
375 ordinary shares of R1 each   88 212   88 212 
Directors' valuation R88 211 559 (2012: R88 211 559)

8.2 Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd "Autopax"

  333 402   581 402 Unlisted shares at cost  -  - 
  23 327   47 530 Loan owing by the subsidiary  -  - 

  356 729   628 932 Net investment in subsidiary  -  - 

Autopax was a subsidiary throughout the year. The loan is interest 
free, unsecured, payable by the subsidiary on demand subordinated 
in favour of the subsidiary's other creditors. The interest in the 
aggregate after taxation loss of the subsidiary amounted to R13.3 
million. (2012: Loss R49,8 million).

During February 2013 Autopax issued 248 000 000 ordinary shares 
at R1 par value. All shares were taken up by PRASA. The unissued 
share capital is under the control of PRASA, the sole shareholder 
of Autopax.

Ownership (%)    100    100 
Voting power (%)    100    100 
Country of incorporation:  South Africa
Principal activity:  Passenger bus services
Authorised share capital
800 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each
Issued share capital
601 863 850  ordinary shares of R1 each (2012: 353 863 850)   601 864   353 864 
Directors' valuation R601 863 850 (2012: R353 863 850)

  425 308   696 860  -  - 

Related party transactions are summarised as follows:
During the year, the Company entered into transactions with its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd. 
and Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd. All transactions with 
the above are concluded on an arm's length basis.
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

Intersite was a subsidiary throughout the year. The loan is interest 
free, unsecured and payable to the subsidiary on demand. The 
holding company's interest in the aggregate after taxation profit of 
the subsidiary amounted to R3.3 million. (2012: Profit R0.4 million).

Ownership (%)    100    100 
Voting power (%)    100    100 
Country of incorporation:  South Africa
Principal activity:  Property management
Authorised share capital
4 000 ordinary shares of R1 each
Issued share capital
375 ordinary shares of R1 each   88 212   88 212 
Directors' valuation R88 211 559 (2012: R88 211 559)

8.2 Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd "Autopax"

  333 402   581 402 Unlisted shares at cost  -  - 
  23 327   47 530 Loan owing by the subsidiary  -  - 

  356 729   628 932 Net investment in subsidiary  -  - 

Autopax was a subsidiary throughout the year. The loan is interest 
free, unsecured, payable by the subsidiary on demand subordinated 
in favour of the subsidiary's other creditors. The interest in the 
aggregate after taxation loss of the subsidiary amounted to R13.3 
million. (2012: Loss R49,8 million).

During February 2013 Autopax issued 248 000 000 ordinary shares 
at R1 par value. All shares were taken up by PRASA. The unissued 
share capital is under the control of PRASA, the sole shareholder 
of Autopax.

Ownership (%)    100    100 
Voting power (%)    100    100 
Country of incorporation:  South Africa
Principal activity:  Passenger bus services
Authorised share capital
800 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each
Issued share capital
601 863 850  ordinary shares of R1 each (2012: 353 863 850)   601 864   353 864 
Directors' valuation R601 863 850 (2012: R353 863 850)

  425 308   696 860  -  - 

Related party transactions are summarised as follows:
During the year, the Company entered into transactions with its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd. 
and Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd. All transactions with 
the above are concluded on an arm's length basis.

NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

Related party transactions are summarised as follows:

Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd

  14 763   8 684 Management and professional fee paid to subsidiary in respect of 
SEP process.  -  - 

Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd

 ( 5 566)  ( 8 141) Rental of property  -  - 
 ( 9 395)  ( 10 854) Rental of buses  -  - 

  51 539   65 413 Auxiliary transport  -  - 

  36 578   46 418  -  - 

9 Trade and other receivables

  75 529   140 244 Trade receivables   103 189   81 936 
   161    461 Prepayments   10 015   11 380 

  38 507   25 057 Rental income receivable   25 057   38 507 
  28 009   42 506 Tenant debtors   42 506   28 009 
  14 443   21 663 Other receivables   33 703   24 729 

  156 649   229 931   214 470   184 561 
 ( 24 211)  ( 24 211) Less: long term portion  ( 24 211)  ( 24 211)

  132 438   205 720   190 259   160 350 

Receivables are shown net of impairment losses amounting to 
R74.6 million (2012: R48.6 million). 
Included in trade receivables is an amount of R29.3 million 
owed by Transnet for workplace improvement projects. Amount 
is claimable back from Transnet once stipulated projects are 
completed. The estimated long term portion of R24.2 million is 
deemed to be recoverable in periods longer than 12 months.
Allowance for impairment 
The Group's trade receivables are stated after allowances for 
doubtful debts based on management's assessment of the 
creditworthiness of the respective debtors. An analysis of the 
allowance is as follows:

 ( 23 477)  ( 44 512) Balance at the beginning of the year  ( 48 629)  ( 27 825)
 ( 21 035)  ( 26 214) Charged to profit or loss  ( 25 986)  ( 20 804)

 ( 44 512)  ( 70 726) Balance at the end of the year  ( 74 615)  ( 48 629)

10 Inventories
  175 443   181 952 Inventories held for maintenance   191 259   182 076 

  31 851   41 488 Inventories held for capital projects   41 488   31 851 
  2 275   5 764 Consumable materials   9 180   2 275 

  209 569   229 204   241 927   216 202 
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NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
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STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
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Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

11 Cash and cash equivalents

  629 489   258 260 Bank balances   303 644   649 520 
 2 891 233  4 654 856 Call deposits  4 682 824  2 921 161 

 3 520 722  4 913 116  4 986 468  3 570 681 

Call deposits earn interest at an average rate of 5.20%
(2012: 5.19%) per annum.

12 Share capital

Authorised

 4 248 258  4 248 258 4 248 258 440 ordinary shares of R1 each  4 248 258  4 248 258 

Issued and fully paid

 4 248 258  4 248 258 4 248 258 440 ordinary shares of R1 each  4 248 258  4 248 258 

There were no movements in the share capital of the Entity (2012: 
none).

The shares are 100% owned by Government.

13 Loans buses

 -  - Mercedes-Benz Financial Services S.A. (Pty) Ltd   133 252   264 344 
 -  - Less: short-term portion  ( 40 493)  ( 56 643)

 -  - Total loans and borrowings   92 759   207 701 

Autopax acquired 570 buses. The acquisition was financed in terms 
of installment agreements, governed by a master loan agreement 
dated 10 February 2010. The Government issued a guarantee for 
the due and punctual fulfillment of Autopax’s payment obligations 
up to the maximum total guarantee amount of R1 216 million.  
The guarantee is valid for 6 years from the date of signature (16 
April 2010) and reduces by any reduction in the amount of capital 
outstanding.  An additional capital amount of R74 million was 
settled during the year. Outstanding balance of guarantee on 31 
March 2013 was R133.25 million. (2012: R264.34 million)

Interest is fixed at 9.45% compounded monthly.  The repayment 
term is six years, the first payment commenced on 15 March 2010.

 -  - Interest paid on this agreement during the year   23 514   27 373 

 -  - Total interest   23 514   27 373 

14 Discounted lease agreements

  20 598   5 759 Total liability   5 759   20 598 
 ( 14 839)  ( 5 759) Less: short-term portion  ( 5 759)  ( 14 839)

  5 759  - Total long term liability  -   5 759 
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11 Cash and cash equivalents

  629 489   258 260 Bank balances   303 644   649 520 
 2 891 233  4 654 856 Call deposits  4 682 824  2 921 161 

 3 520 722  4 913 116  4 986 468  3 570 681 

Call deposits earn interest at an average rate of 5.20%
(2012: 5.19%) per annum.

12 Share capital

Authorised

 4 248 258  4 248 258 4 248 258 440 ordinary shares of R1 each  4 248 258  4 248 258 

Issued and fully paid

 4 248 258  4 248 258 4 248 258 440 ordinary shares of R1 each  4 248 258  4 248 258 

There were no movements in the share capital of the Entity (2012: 
none).

The shares are 100% owned by Government.

13 Loans buses

 -  - Mercedes-Benz Financial Services S.A. (Pty) Ltd   133 252   264 344 
 -  - Less: short-term portion  ( 40 493)  ( 56 643)

 -  - Total loans and borrowings   92 759   207 701 

Autopax acquired 570 buses. The acquisition was financed in terms 
of installment agreements, governed by a master loan agreement 
dated 10 February 2010. The Government issued a guarantee for 
the due and punctual fulfillment of Autopax’s payment obligations 
up to the maximum total guarantee amount of R1 216 million.  
The guarantee is valid for 6 years from the date of signature (16 
April 2010) and reduces by any reduction in the amount of capital 
outstanding.  An additional capital amount of R74 million was 
settled during the year. Outstanding balance of guarantee on 31 
March 2013 was R133.25 million. (2012: R264.34 million)

Interest is fixed at 9.45% compounded monthly.  The repayment 
term is six years, the first payment commenced on 15 March 2010.

 -  - Interest paid on this agreement during the year   23 514   27 373 

 -  - Total interest   23 514   27 373 

14 Discounted lease agreements

  20 598   5 759 Total liability   5 759   20 598 
 ( 14 839)  ( 5 759) Less: short-term portion  ( 5 759)  ( 14 839)

  5 759  - Total long term liability  -   5 759 
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The long-term liability from Infrastructure Finance Corporation 
Ltd (INCA) consists of loans, which arose as a result of discounting 
future operating lease receivables from lessees in order to obtain 
funds to effect improvements to the Group's properties, mainly its 
station properties, which have been capitalised to property, plant 
and equipment. Interest is charged in respect of these loans at 
fixed rates, which were market-related at the time the loans were 
negotiated.  

  3 857   1 615 Interest paid on these agreements during the year.   1 615   3 857 

15 Provision for insurance claims

The amount shown comprises the gross provision in respect of 
certain claims brought against the Group by commuters in respect 
of accidents, which occurred in the current and previous years. It 
is not expected that the outcome will give rise to significant claims 
over and above the amounts provided, as the claims have already 
been registered with the assessors.

  326 326   417 383 Balance at the beginning of the year   417 383   326 326 
  221 267   294 832 Provisions made during the year   294 832   221 267 

 ( 130 210)  ( 155 090) Provisions settled during the year  ( 155 090)  ( 130 210)

  417 383   557 125 Balance at the end of the year   557 125   417 383 
 ( 166 953)  ( 207 015) Less: short-term portion  ( 207 015)  ( 166 953)

  250 430   350 110 Long-term portion   350 110   250 430 

The Chain Ladder method previously applied by Alexander Forbes 
was retained by Marsh, the incumbent insurance brokers, in 
calculating the development factors for the PRASA Liability losses 
as at 31 March 2013. Ultimately these factors will be used to 
estimate the level of reserve required. The Chain Ladder method is 
a calculation approach used to estimate outstanding claims (IBNR 
and future claim payments as required), whereby the weighted 
average of past claim development is projected into the future 
with adjustments to development patterns where applicable. The 
projection is based on the ratios of cumulative past claims, paid 
and incurred, for successive years of development. The method 
can be applied to past claims data with either explicit or implicit 
allowance for claims inflation. Based on the stability in the average 
claim values, the implicit adjustment was retained.

A discount rate of 7.00% (2012: 8.00%) was used to discount future 
estimated payments. Each year was discounted to represent 
today’s value. In addition to adjustments to the incurred claim 
patterns as derived from prior years’ reporting patterns, the 
discounting model attempts to allow for further uncertainties in 
the timing of claim payments for up to 16 years in the future. The 
derived development and settlement factors, were applied to these 
outstanding losses to project a future settlement pattern and then 
based on the total settlement pattern; a discounting cash flow 
model was developed.
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16 Post-retirement medical aid defined benefit plan

Employees of the Group participate in Transmed Medical Scheme, 
administered by Metropolitan Health Group (Pty) Ltd, which is 
unfunded.

The terms of the post-employment medical scheme are 
summarised below:

•   The Company subsidises some employees for a fixed amount of 
R213 per month in retirement.  The amount is fixed irrespective 
of the number of dependents on the medical scheme and will 
not increase in future.

•   If a member eligible for a retirement subsidy dies in service, 
their dependants are eligible for a subsidy of medical scheme 
contributions as described above, provided they remain on 
Transmed Medical Fund.

The actuarial projection method used to value the fund is the 
projected unit credit method. 

Movement in the present value of the unfunded obligation:

  61 182   20 916 Accrued liability at the beginning of the year   21 183   62 843 

 ( 1 979)  ( 1 945) Benefits paid  ( 1 968)  ( 1 999)

 ( 38 287)  ( 1 928) Expenses recognised in profit or loss  ( 1 954)  ( 39 661)

  5 282   1 745 -  Interest cost   1 767   5 443 
  3 022  - -  Current service  -   3 330 

 ( 46 526)  - -  Curtailment  -  ( 48 330)
 (  65)  ( 3 673) -  Actuarial loss  ( 3 721)  (  104)

20 916   17 043 Accrued liability at the end of the year   17 261   21 183

Employees of the company retiring from 1 April 2012 onwards will 
no longer be eligible for the post retirement medical aid subsidy. 
As a result, no liability has been calculated in respect of the current 
active members.
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

8.75% 8.11% Discount rate per annum 8.11% 8.75%

8.75% 8.11% Net effective discount rate 8.11% 8.75%

Sensitivity results
Should the discount rate decrease by 1% the accrued liability will 
be R18.6 million; should the discount rate increase by 1% the 
accrued liability will be R16.1 million for the Group.
Should the age rating be lower by one year the accrued liability will 
be R16.9 million.
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16 Post-retirement medical aid defined benefit plan

Employees of the Group participate in Transmed Medical Scheme, 
administered by Metropolitan Health Group (Pty) Ltd, which is 
unfunded.

The terms of the post-employment medical scheme are 
summarised below:

•   The Company subsidises some employees for a fixed amount of 
R213 per month in retirement.  The amount is fixed irrespective 
of the number of dependents on the medical scheme and will 
not increase in future.

•   If a member eligible for a retirement subsidy dies in service, 
their dependants are eligible for a subsidy of medical scheme 
contributions as described above, provided they remain on 
Transmed Medical Fund.

The actuarial projection method used to value the fund is the 
projected unit credit method. 

Movement in the present value of the unfunded obligation:

  61 182   20 916 Accrued liability at the beginning of the year   21 183   62 843 

 ( 1 979)  ( 1 945) Benefits paid  ( 1 968)  ( 1 999)

 ( 38 287)  ( 1 928) Expenses recognised in profit or loss  ( 1 954)  ( 39 661)

  5 282   1 745 -  Interest cost   1 767   5 443 
  3 022  - -  Current service  -   3 330 

 ( 46 526)  - -  Curtailment  -  ( 48 330)
 (  65)  ( 3 673) -  Actuarial loss  ( 3 721)  (  104)

20 916   17 043 Accrued liability at the end of the year   17 261   21 183

Employees of the company retiring from 1 April 2012 onwards will 
no longer be eligible for the post retirement medical aid subsidy. 
As a result, no liability has been calculated in respect of the current 
active members.
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

8.75% 8.11% Discount rate per annum 8.11% 8.75%

8.75% 8.11% Net effective discount rate 8.11% 8.75%

Sensitivity results
Should the discount rate decrease by 1% the accrued liability will 
be R18.6 million; should the discount rate increase by 1% the 
accrued liability will be R16.1 million for the Group.
Should the age rating be lower by one year the accrued liability will 
be R16.9 million.
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17 Defined benefit plan - retirement fund

The Group operates a defined benefit fund administered by 
Metropolitan Retirement Fund Administrators. The assets of the 
funds are held separate from those of the Group. The fund is 
actuarially valued by Liberty Corporate Actuaries, an independent 
company.

A member with at least ten years pensionable service is entitled to 
the following benefits on attaining the minimum retirement age:

•  An annual pension equal to:
      (Average pensionable salary) x (pensionable service) x (accrual 

factor of 1)

•  Plus a gratuity equal to:
     (1/3) x (1) x (gratuity factor)

A member with less than ten years of pensionable service is 
entitled to gratuity equal to twice the member's own contribution 
without interest on attaining the age limit.

The rules do not permit late retirement after the attainment of the 
age limit.

  887 225  1 018 795 Fair value of plan assets  1 018 795   887 225 
 ( 631 555)  ( 659 400) Total present value of obligations  ( 659 400)  ( 631 555)

  255 670   359 395 Surplus   359 395   255 670 
 ( 248 409)  ( 352 268) Less: amount not recognised as a result of IAS 19.58  ( 352 268)  ( 248 409)

  7 261   7 127 Net defined benefit plan assets   7 127   7 261 

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

  869 458   887 225 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year   887 225   869 458 
  80 210   79 465 Expected return   79 465   80 210 

  4 168   4 479 Contributions received   4 479   4 168 
 ( 54 987)  ( 38 319) Benefits paid  ( 38 319)  ( 54 987)
 ( 11 624)   85 945 Actuarial gain/(loss)   85 945  ( 11 624)

  887 225  1 018 795 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  1 018 795   887 225 

The fair value of plan assets consist of:

  94 047   42 789 Cash   42 789   94 047 
  427 642   336 202 Equity   336 202   427 642 
  187 204   366 766 Bonds   366 766   187 204 

  39 925   78 448 Property and Other   78 448   39 925 
  138 407   194 590 International   194 590   138 407 

  887 225  1 018 795 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  1 018 795   887 225 
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Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

 ( 527 762)  ( 631 555) Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the 
year  ( 631 555)  ( 527 762)

 ( 49 658)  ( 53 961) Interest cost  ( 53 961)  ( 49 658)

 ( 2 617)  ( 3 076) Past and current service cost  ( 3 076)  ( 2 617)

 ( 1 688)  ( 1 814) Member contributions  ( 1 814)  ( 1 688)
  54 987   38 319 Benefits paid   38 319   54 987 

 ( 104 817)  ( 7 313) Actuarial loss  ( 7 313)  ( 104 817)

 ( 631 555)  ( 659 400) Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  ( 659 400)  ( 631 555)

Expenses recognised in profit or loss

 ( 2 617)  ( 3 076) Current service costs  ( 3 076)  ( 2 617)

 ( 49 658)  ( 53 961) Interest cost  ( 53 961)  ( 49 658)

  80 210   79 465 Expected return on plan assets   79 465   80 210 

  2 480   2 665 Company contributions   2 665   2 480 

 ( 116 442)   78 633 Recognised actuarial gains/losses   78 633  ( 116 442)
  85 052  ( 103 860) Change in asset limitation  ( 103 860)   85 052 

 (  975)  (  134)  (  134)  (  975)

These expenses are recognised in operating expenses.
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

8.75% 8.11% Discount rate 8.11% 8.75%
6.47% 6.76% Inflation rate 6.76% 6.47%
7.47% 7.76% Salary increase rate 7.76% 7.47%
4.85% 5.07% Pension increase allowance 5.07% 4.85%
8.75% 8.11% Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.11% 8.75%

18 Capital subsidy and grants 

 13 373 147  18 195 029 Balance at the beginning of the year  18 779 566  14 070 945 
  9 217   60 150 Grants received during the year   60 150   9 217 

 6 134 768  6 701 106 Capital subsidy received during the year  6 701 106  6 134 768 
 (1 322 103)  (1 382 794) Less: amortised  (1 497 256)  (1 435 364)

 18 195 029  23 573 491 Total  24 043 566  18 779 566 
 (1 414 650)  (1 793 943) Less: short-term portion  (1 908 405)  (1 527 911)

16 780 379  21 779 548 Long-term portion  22 135 161  17 251 655 

Capital subsidies are amortised over the useful life of the assets.
Capital subsidies receivable in future years:
2014:  R   7 481.1 million
2015:  R 10 710.9 million
2016:  R 13 865.5 million
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Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
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  54 987   38 319 Benefits paid   38 319   54 987 

 ( 104 817)  ( 7 313) Actuarial loss  ( 7 313)  ( 104 817)

 ( 631 555)  ( 659 400) Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  ( 659 400)  ( 631 555)

Expenses recognised in profit or loss

 ( 2 617)  ( 3 076) Current service costs  ( 3 076)  ( 2 617)

 ( 49 658)  ( 53 961) Interest cost  ( 53 961)  ( 49 658)

  80 210   79 465 Expected return on plan assets   79 465   80 210 

  2 480   2 665 Company contributions   2 665   2 480 

 ( 116 442)   78 633 Recognised actuarial gains/losses   78 633  ( 116 442)
  85 052  ( 103 860) Change in asset limitation  ( 103 860)   85 052 

 (  975)  (  134)  (  134)  (  975)

These expenses are recognised in operating expenses.
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

8.75% 8.11% Discount rate 8.11% 8.75%
6.47% 6.76% Inflation rate 6.76% 6.47%
7.47% 7.76% Salary increase rate 7.76% 7.47%
4.85% 5.07% Pension increase allowance 5.07% 4.85%
8.75% 8.11% Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.11% 8.75%

18 Capital subsidy and grants 

 13 373 147  18 195 029 Balance at the beginning of the year  18 779 566  14 070 945 
  9 217   60 150 Grants received during the year   60 150   9 217 

 6 134 768  6 701 106 Capital subsidy received during the year  6 701 106  6 134 768 
 (1 322 103)  (1 382 794) Less: amortised  (1 497 256)  (1 435 364)

 18 195 029  23 573 491 Total  24 043 566  18 779 566 
 (1 414 650)  (1 793 943) Less: short-term portion  (1 908 405)  (1 527 911)

16 780 379  21 779 548 Long-term portion  22 135 161  17 251 655 

Capital subsidies are amortised over the useful life of the assets.
Capital subsidies receivable in future years:
2014:  R   7 481.1 million
2015:  R 10 710.9 million
2016:  R 13 865.5 million
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19 Trade and other payables

 2 035 486  4 381 778 Trade payables  4 402 902  2 116 800 
  55 404   97 911 Retention   97 911   55 404 

  266 521   240 781 Leave pay accrual   252 009   276 971 
  29 135   65 110 Income received in advance   70 704   38 759 

 2 386 546  4 785 580  4 823 526  2 487 934 

20 Operating leases rental income

20.1 Where the Group is the lessor

  299 633   327 640 Rental income received   310 117   284 763 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

  116 224   130 945 Not later than one year   130 945   116 224 
  246 951   282 087 Later than one year and not later than five years   282 087   246 951 
  930 237   775 755 Later than five years   775 755   930 237 

 1 293 412  1 188 787  1 188 787  1 293 412 

20.1.1 Description of the Group as lessor's significant leasing 
arrangements

20.1.1.1 Short-term commercial and residential operating leases
The Group has entered into a number of short-term 
commercial and residential operating leases in respect of 
certain land and buildings with third parties, in order to 
maximise the inflow of economic benefits from our assets.  
The average term of these leases is between three and five 
years, and do not provide for any purchase options. In some 
older lease agreements, lessees have renewal options for a 
short-term period if they have complied with all terms and 
conditions of the original lease, and on renewal, lease rentals 
are subjected to escalation. Newer lease agreements have 
no renewal options but have rights of first refusal should the 
Group decide to continue leasing the properties on expiry of 
the lease.  Lease agreements generally contain a clause that 
they may be cancelled at the option of the lessor after giving 
sufficient notice to the lessee, should the lease arrangements 
conflict with commuter services to be provided. 

20.1.1.2 Commercial operating leases with improvements to premises
To effect improvements to the property, the Entity had to 
obtain financing from external sources.  The Entity discounted 
cash flows from the lease agreements with Infrastructure 
Finance Group Ltd (INCA) in order to obtain funds to pay for 
the improvements.  These amounts have been recognised as a 
long-term liability (refer to note 14). In terms of the agreements, 
the Entity is obliged to effect certain improvements to the 
premises, which have been capitalised and depreciated in the 
same manner as other similar properties. 
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20.1.1.3 Leasehold improvements operating leases

The Group has entered into a number of operating leases with 
third parties for the lease of land.  In terms of the agreements, 
the lessee is obliged to effect leasehold improvements on the 
premises, which remains the property of the lessor, without 
compensation to the lessee, on termination of the lease. Lease 
rentals charged for the land are market-related, determined 
with reference to independent valuations of the properties, 
and no incentive is given to lessees in view of the leasehold 
improvements which they are obliged to effect.  The terms of 
the leases are generally between 20 and 50 years. However, 
there are three instances where the lease terms are 83, 84 
and 91 years. The leases between 20 and 50 years have rental 
reviews renegotiated every five years with the majority of the 
leases incorporating turnover clauses.

These leasehold improvements are effected and financed by 
lessees, who have exclusive rights of use of the buildings for 
the period of the lease.  As a result, these buildings are not 
classified as assets of the Group as defined and therefore have 
not been capitalised. However, these assets will be capitalised 
on expiry of the lease. These assets are bonded by lessees' 
financiers who have the first option of occupation in the event 
of breach of contract.

20.2 Where the Group is the lessee

  180 255   210 123 Operating lease expenses   266 584   250 320 

The future minimum lease payments payable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

  55 785   4 905 Not later than one year   15 688   96 325 
  109 577    106 Later than one year and not later than five years   12 824   213 174 

 -  - Later than five years  -  - 

  165 362   5 011   28 512   309 499 

Lease agreements for vehicles have been settled during the 
year. Majority of leases consist of property rentals.

 1 701 342  2 054 004 21 Fare revenue  2 756 286  2 341 579

  Fare revenue comprises ticket sales to train and bus 
commuters for passenger and long distance journeys.   

 3 339 330  3 526 799 22 Government subsidy  3 526 799  3 339 330

  

The Government subsidy, which is received annually to 
finance the operational deficit is not guaranteed. However, the 
following Medium Term Expenditure Framework allocations 
have been made in respect of future years:

  

2014:  R 3 678.0 million
2015:  R 3 887.3 million
2016:  R 4 066.2 million
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20.1.1.3 Leasehold improvements operating leases

The Group has entered into a number of operating leases with 
third parties for the lease of land.  In terms of the agreements, 
the lessee is obliged to effect leasehold improvements on the 
premises, which remains the property of the lessor, without 
compensation to the lessee, on termination of the lease. Lease 
rentals charged for the land are market-related, determined 
with reference to independent valuations of the properties, 
and no incentive is given to lessees in view of the leasehold 
improvements which they are obliged to effect.  The terms of 
the leases are generally between 20 and 50 years. However, 
there are three instances where the lease terms are 83, 84 
and 91 years. The leases between 20 and 50 years have rental 
reviews renegotiated every five years with the majority of the 
leases incorporating turnover clauses.

These leasehold improvements are effected and financed by 
lessees, who have exclusive rights of use of the buildings for 
the period of the lease.  As a result, these buildings are not 
classified as assets of the Group as defined and therefore have 
not been capitalised. However, these assets will be capitalised 
on expiry of the lease. These assets are bonded by lessees' 
financiers who have the first option of occupation in the event 
of breach of contract.

20.2 Where the Group is the lessee

  180 255   210 123 Operating lease expenses   266 584   250 320 

The future minimum lease payments payable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

  55 785   4 905 Not later than one year   15 688   96 325 
  109 577    106 Later than one year and not later than five years   12 824   213 174 

 -  - Later than five years  -  - 

  165 362   5 011   28 512   309 499 

Lease agreements for vehicles have been settled during the 
year. Majority of leases consist of property rentals.

 1 701 342  2 054 004 21 Fare revenue  2 756 286  2 341 579

  Fare revenue comprises ticket sales to train and bus 
commuters for passenger and long distance journeys.   

 3 339 330  3 526 799 22 Government subsidy  3 526 799  3 339 330

  

The Government subsidy, which is received annually to 
finance the operational deficit is not guaranteed. However, the 
following Medium Term Expenditure Framework allocations 
have been made in respect of future years:

  

2014:  R 3 678.0 million
2015:  R 3 887.3 million
2016:  R 4 066.2 million
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23 Management fee

Management fee on property management services rendered 
 -  - to other public entities.   43 760   47 669 

24 Derecognition/loss on disposal of assets

  90 912   109 239 Derecognition/loss on disposal of rolling stock   109 239   90 912 
  12 334  ( 2 387) Loss/(profit) on disposal of other assets  ( 40 461)   21 629 

  103 246   106 852   68 778   112 541 

25 Operating expenditure

  13 504   11 063 Audit fee - external audit   12 625   15 000 
  14 474   16 060 Audit fee - internal audit   16 070   14 474 
  29 097   33 214 Bank charges and penalties   56 324   48 578 
  54 403   63 517 Communications   68 144   59 008 
  72 040   129 165 Computer expenses   130 733   74 026 

 -  - Cost of sale on property management   30 047   36 450 
 3 366 784  3 710 153 Employee benefits  3 989 880  3 596 587 

  587 454   678 244 Energy expenses   925 410   802 257 
  242 063   380 848 Haulage fees   380 848   242 063 
  146 886   175 281 Health and risk   179 522   151 183 
  221 267   294 832 Insurance claims   294 832   221 267 

  77 446   68 760 Insurance premiums   76 265   79 846 
  28 882   33 436 Legal fees   33 662   26 901 

  174 207   293 552 Maintenance expenditure   358 253   224 996 
  46 701   88 296 Marketing   77 731   50 309 

  124 701   242 725 Material expenses   287 651   161 212 
  180 255   210 123 Operating lease expenses   266 584   250 320 

  12 013   10 631 Printing   10 804   13 729 
  256 338   255 904 Professional fees   256 446   251 349 
  203 116   261 054 Rates & taxes, electricity   262 832   204 502 
  379 896   508 715 Security   522 702   392 332 

  45 836   63 435 Training   66 914   50 541 
  46 308   45 983 Travel expenses   51 168   50 506 
  44 026   117 799 Other expenditure   152 783   65 787 

 6 367 697  7 692 790  8 508 230  7 083 223 
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ENTITY GROUP

Directors’
Fees Salary

Retirement 
fund 

contributions
Other

contributions

Performance 
Incentive

bonus 2013 2012 2013 2012

R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

26  Personnel cost and directors’ emoluments

Defined contribution and benefit plans expense   336 331   323 018   354 963   337 765 
Unemployment Insurance Fund   21 337   20 110   23 229   21 684 
Unwinding of interest on post-retirement medical aid benefits   1 745   5 282   1 767   5 443 
Salaries and personnel cost  3 321 705  2 993 636  3 572 547  3 199 841 

Executive directors  -   12 054  -    348   1 115   7 636   8 339   13 517   13 164 
Mr TL Montana (Group CEO)  -   4 781  -  -  -   4 781   4 554   4 781   4 554 
Mr TR Kgaboesele (CRES/Autopax)   2 730  -  -  -    455   1 708   2 730   2 541 
Mr NC Molepo (CRES)  -  -  -  -  -  -   2 077  -   2 077 
Ms M Ngoye (Intersite)  -   2 145  -    346   1 115  -  -   3 606   1 769 
Mr S Zamxaka (PRASA Technical)   2 398  -    2  -   2 400  -   2 400   2 223 

Non-executive directors   6 045  -  -    12  -   3 599   2 999   6 057   5 290 
Mr S Buthelezi (Chairman)    850  -  -  -  -    850    704    850    704 
Ms B Gasa    361  -  -  -  -    361    327    361    327 
Mr T Gcabashe    299  -  -  -  -    299    272    299    272 
Mr X George    348  -  -  -  -    348    213    348    213 
Mr N Khena    288  -  -  -  -    288    348    288    348 
Ms L Letlape  -  -  -  -  -  -    93  -    93 
Ms Z Mzaidume  -  -  -  -  -  -    136  -    136 
Ms NS Mxenge    262  -  -  -  -    262  -    262  - 
Mr M Nkoenyane    515  -  -  -  -    515    269    515    269 
Mr K Pillay    276  -  -  -  -    276    250    276    250 
Mr M Salanje    400  -  -  -  -    400    363    400    363 
Mr V Twala  -  -  -  -  -  -    24  -    24 
Autopax (subsidiary)
Mr BB Kupe    183  -  -  -  -  -  -    183    190 
Mr LR Hlapolosa    28  -  -  -  -  -  -    28  - 
Ms L Letlape    151  -  -  -  -  -  -    151    118 
Mr TC Luvhani    194  -  -  -  -  -  -    194    201 
Ms MG Mokoka    183  -  -  -  -  -  -    183    190 
Mr V Twala    211  -  -  -  -  -  -    211    74 
Intersite (subsidiary)
Ms J Boggenpoel  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -    53 
Mr B Boshielo    374  -  -  -  -  -  -    374    166 
Ms B Haywood    305  -  -    12  -  -  -    317    303 
Ms HN Lupuwana    184  -  -  -  -  -  -    184  - 
Mr P Moiloa    308  -  -  -  -  -  -    308    232 
Ms M Mokoka    44  -  -  -  -  -    44  - 
Mr L Mothiba    29  -  -  -  -  -  -    29    203 
Mr R Moyo    223  -  -  -  -  -  -    223    356 
Ms S Serobe    29  -  -  -  -  -  -    29    205 

Other key management  -   15 738   1 001   1 061  -   17 800   13 400   17 800   13 400 
Mr F Gastin  -   3 006  -   1 060  -   4 066   2 120   4 066   2 120 
Mr N Khena  -    641    57    1  -    699  -    699  - 
Mr T Holele  -   2 108  -  -  -   2 108   2 009   2 108   2 009 
Ms S Mabaso-Koyana  -  -  -  -  -  -   3 181  -   3 181 
Mr C Mbatha  -   1 640    275  -  -   1 915   1 749   1 915   1 749 
Mr EM Mofi  -   2 781    252  -  -   3 033  -   3 033  - 
Ms P Munthali  -   2 103    15  -  -   2 118   2 009   2 118   2 009 
Mr M Ramutloa  -  -  -  -  -  -   2 332  -  - 
Mr AR Zaman  -   1 500    72  -  -   1 572  -   1 572  - 
Mr L Zide  -   1 959    330  -  -   2 289  -   2 289   2 332 

  6 045   27 792   1 001   1 421   1 115  3 710 153  3 366 784  3 989 880  3 596 587 
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ENTITY GROUP

Directors’
Fees Salary

Retirement 
fund 

contributions
Other

contributions

Performance 
Incentive

bonus 2013 2012 2013 2012

R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

26  Personnel cost and directors’ emoluments

Defined contribution and benefit plans expense   336 331   323 018   354 963   337 765 
Unemployment Insurance Fund   21 337   20 110   23 229   21 684 
Unwinding of interest on post-retirement medical aid benefits   1 745   5 282   1 767   5 443 
Salaries and personnel cost  3 321 705  2 993 636  3 572 547  3 199 841 

Executive directors  -   12 054  -    348   1 115   7 636   8 339   13 517   13 164 
Mr TL Montana (Group CEO)  -   4 781  -  -  -   4 781   4 554   4 781   4 554 
Mr TR Kgaboesele (CRES/Autopax)   2 730  -  -  -    455   1 708   2 730   2 541 
Mr NC Molepo (CRES)  -  -  -  -  -  -   2 077  -   2 077 
Ms M Ngoye (Intersite)  -   2 145  -    346   1 115  -  -   3 606   1 769 
Mr S Zamxaka (PRASA Technical)   2 398  -    2  -   2 400  -   2 400   2 223 

Non-executive directors   6 045  -  -    12  -   3 599   2 999   6 057   5 290 
Mr S Buthelezi (Chairman)    850  -  -  -  -    850    704    850    704 
Ms B Gasa    361  -  -  -  -    361    327    361    327 
Mr T Gcabashe    299  -  -  -  -    299    272    299    272 
Mr X George    348  -  -  -  -    348    213    348    213 
Mr N Khena    288  -  -  -  -    288    348    288    348 
Ms L Letlape  -  -  -  -  -  -    93  -    93 
Ms Z Mzaidume  -  -  -  -  -  -    136  -    136 
Ms NS Mxenge    262  -  -  -  -    262  -    262  - 
Mr M Nkoenyane    515  -  -  -  -    515    269    515    269 
Mr K Pillay    276  -  -  -  -    276    250    276    250 
Mr M Salanje    400  -  -  -  -    400    363    400    363 
Mr V Twala  -  -  -  -  -  -    24  -    24 
Autopax (subsidiary)
Mr BB Kupe    183  -  -  -  -  -  -    183    190 
Mr LR Hlapolosa    28  -  -  -  -  -  -    28  - 
Ms L Letlape    151  -  -  -  -  -  -    151    118 
Mr TC Luvhani    194  -  -  -  -  -  -    194    201 
Ms MG Mokoka    183  -  -  -  -  -  -    183    190 
Mr V Twala    211  -  -  -  -  -  -    211    74 
Intersite (subsidiary)
Ms J Boggenpoel  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -    53 
Mr B Boshielo    374  -  -  -  -  -  -    374    166 
Ms B Haywood    305  -  -    12  -  -  -    317    303 
Ms HN Lupuwana    184  -  -  -  -  -  -    184  - 
Mr P Moiloa    308  -  -  -  -  -  -    308    232 
Ms M Mokoka    44  -  -  -  -  -    44  - 
Mr L Mothiba    29  -  -  -  -  -  -    29    203 
Mr R Moyo    223  -  -  -  -  -  -    223    356 
Ms S Serobe    29  -  -  -  -  -  -    29    205 

Other key management  -   15 738   1 001   1 061  -   17 800   13 400   17 800   13 400 
Mr F Gastin  -   3 006  -   1 060  -   4 066   2 120   4 066   2 120 
Mr N Khena  -    641    57    1  -    699  -    699  - 
Mr T Holele  -   2 108  -  -  -   2 108   2 009   2 108   2 009 
Ms S Mabaso-Koyana  -  -  -  -  -  -   3 181  -   3 181 
Mr C Mbatha  -   1 640    275  -  -   1 915   1 749   1 915   1 749 
Mr EM Mofi  -   2 781    252  -  -   3 033  -   3 033  - 
Ms P Munthali  -   2 103    15  -  -   2 118   2 009   2 118   2 009 
Mr M Ramutloa  -  -  -  -  -  -   2 332  -  - 
Mr AR Zaman  -   1 500    72  -  -   1 572  -   1 572  - 
Mr L Zide  -   1 959    330  -  -   2 289  -   2 289   2 332 

  6 045   27 792   1 001   1 421   1 115  3 710 153  3 366 784  3 989 880  3 596 587 

NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

27 Sundry income

  12 641   19 103 Insurance recovered   21 953   12 641 
  206 054   200 351 Other   264 563   264 167 

  218 695   219 454   286 516   276 808 

Included in sundry income for 2012 is an amount of R88.9 
million, reversal of interest charged by Transnet on negotiated 
outstanding amounts.

28 Finance cost

 ( 3 857)  ( 1 615) Interest (paid)/received on long-term liability  ( 25 129)  ( 31 230)
 ( 10 159)  ( 5 930) Interest other  ( 7 979)  ( 10 473)

 ( 14 016)  ( 7 545)  ( 33 108)  ( 41 703)

29 Finance income

  161 613   247 376 Interest received from banking institutions, on bank balances 
and call accounts.

  250 038   164 234 

30 Taxation

30.1 South African normal taxation

 -  - Current taxation  -  - 
 -  - Under provision in prior years  -  - 
 -  - Deferred taxation    126  - 

 -  -    126  - 

30.2 Reconciliation of rate of taxation

 -  - Effective rate 0.00% 0.00%
Adjusted for:

 -  - Assessed loss 28.00% 28.00%

 -  - South African normal taxation rate 28.00% 28.00%

30.3 Deferred taxation Intersite Asset Investments (SOC) Ltd

Deferred taxation asset comprises:

 -  - Balance at beginning of year    126    126 
 -  - Movement during the year  (  126)  - 

 -  - Deferred taxation asset at the end of the year -    126 

The Company has not recognised any deferred tax asset as 
it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the associated unused tax losses and deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. The deferred asset 
brought forward from the prior year has been reversed in this 
regard.

89

PASSENGER RAIL AGENCY OF SOUTH AFRICA ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B



NOTES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

30.4 Deferred taxation Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd

The net deferred tax assets has not been recognised as the 
near future taxable profits will not be sufficient against which 
the associated unused losses and deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised.

 -   - Balance beginning of year   81 726   86 444 
 -    - Deferred tax asset   34 054  ( 4 718)

 -   -   115 780   81 726 
 -    - Deferred tax asset not recognised  ( 115 780)  ( 81 726)

 -   -  -  - 

Analyses of major categories of temporary differences:

 -     - Provisions   5 325   4 286 
 -    -  Income received in advance   1 567   2 695 
 -    - Straightlining of leases    424    343 
 -     - Accumulated loss   231 200   151 519 

 -    -   Deferred tax asset   238 516   158 843 

 -    -   Property, plant and equipment  ( 120 061)  ( 73 976)
 -    -   Deferred expenditure  ( 2 675)  ( 3 141)

 -    -   Deferred tax liability  ( 122 736)  ( 77 117)

 -    -   Net deferred tax asset   115 780   81 726 

31 Capital commitments

 6 087 293  8 103 740 Commitments for future years in respect of contracts entered into.  8 103 950  6 375 293 

 6 087 293  8 103 740  8 103 950  6 375 293 

The capital expenditure committed will be funded through 
capital subsidies from the Department of Transport.
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

30.4 Deferred taxation Autopax Passenger Services (SOC) Ltd

The net deferred tax assets has not been recognised as the 
near future taxable profits will not be sufficient against which 
the associated unused losses and deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised.

 -   - Balance beginning of year   81 726   86 444 
 -    - Deferred tax asset   34 054  ( 4 718)

 -   -   115 780   81 726 
 -    - Deferred tax asset not recognised  ( 115 780)  ( 81 726)

 -   -  -  - 

Analyses of major categories of temporary differences:

 -     - Provisions   5 325   4 286 
 -    -  Income received in advance   1 567   2 695 
 -    - Straightlining of leases    424    343 
 -     - Accumulated loss   231 200   151 519 

 -    -   Deferred tax asset   238 516   158 843 

 -    -   Property, plant and equipment  ( 120 061)  ( 73 976)
 -    -   Deferred expenditure  ( 2 675)  ( 3 141)

 -    -   Deferred tax liability  ( 122 736)  ( 77 117)

 -    -   Net deferred tax asset   115 780   81 726 

31 Capital commitments

 6 087 293  8 103 740 Commitments for future years in respect of contracts entered into.  8 103 950  6 375 293 

 6 087 293  8 103 740  8 103 950  6 375 293 

The capital expenditure committed will be funded through 
capital subsidies from the Department of Transport.

NOTES TO THE 
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STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2013
Continued

ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

32 Reconciliation of net loss before taxation to cash utilised in 
operations

 ( 824 909)  (1 536 800) Operating cash flows before working capital changes  (1 556 865)  ( 810 852)
  20 601  ( 146 802) Net loss before taxation  ( 156 610)  ( 28 931)

Adjusted for:
 1 276 712  1 367 375 Depreciation and amortisation  1 487 522  1 420 806 

  103 246   106 852 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   68 778   112 541 
  34 330  ( 1 222) Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ( 1 737)   34 330 
  21 035   26 214 Impairment of trade and other receivables   25 986   20 804 

 ( 38 287)  ( 1 928) Fair value adjustments on post-retirement medical aid benefit  ( 1 954)  ( 39 661)
 ( 773 821)  (1 264 798) Fair value adjustments on investment properties  (1 264 798)  ( 773 821)

  5 282   1 745 Unwinding of interest on post-retirement medical aid benefits   1 767   5 443 
   975    134 Repayment on defined benefit assets    134    975 

 (1 322 103)  (1 382 794) Amortisation on capital subsidy and grants received  (1 497 256)  (1 435 364)
  8 734   5 800 Finance cost   31 341   36 260 

 ( 161 613)  ( 247 376) Income from investments  ( 250 038)  ( 164 234)

 ( 236 239)  2 563 710 Changes in working capital  2 551 359  ( 186 751)
  113 473  ( 99 496) Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables  ( 55 895)   163 175 
  221 267   294 832 Increase in provision for insurance claims   294 832   221 267 

 -  - Decrease in assets held for sale   13 603    800 
 ( 68 847)  ( 19 635) Increase in inventories  ( 25 727)  ( 70 685)

 ( 499 019)  2 399 034 (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables  2 335 594  ( 498 175)
 ( 1 979)  ( 1 945) Benefits paid on post retirement medical aid benefit  ( 1 968)  ( 1 999)
 ( 1 134)  ( 9 080) Decrease in discounted lease agreements  ( 9 080)  ( 1 134)

 (1 061 148)  1 026 910 Cash (utilised)/generated in operations   994 494  ( 997 603)

33 Contingent liabilities

  14 248   14 248 33.1 Makumo Technologies claiming for damages and loss suffered 
as a result of alleged repudiation of contract by PRASA. 

  14 248   14 248 

  6 000  - 33.2 Afri Guard and three other security companies claiming 
payment of statutory interest for period November 2009 to 
March 2010. 

 -   6 000 

  41 000   41 000 33.3 Bagale Consulting claiming R41 million for extra work done 
during 2010 due to increase in scope.   41 000   41 000 

  7 746   120 589 33.4 Labour disputes, including mass dismissal dispute by National 
Transport Movement.   120 589   7 746 

  3 460   3 460 33.5 PRASA vs. Rail & Road Assessing Services, for alleged services 
rendered.   3 460   3 460 

   409    409 33.6 Pro-Arm Fire Training Academy for services rendered.    409    409 

  2 280   2 280 33.7 Lenkwane Cleaning Services for breach of contract.   2 280   2 280 
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

  2 555  - 33.8 Snow Consulting Engineers for services rendered.  -   2 555 

  9 000   40 589 33.9 Proconse Consulting Engineers for services rendered.   40 589   9 000 

  77 157   79 216 33.10 Various insurance claims for personal injuries as well as legal 
and other matters which may result in a possible loss in future.

  79 216   77 157 

 -   2 692 33.11 Africa International (Pty)Ltd - utility and insurance charges 
paid on behalf of Rail.

  2 692  - 

 -    173 33.12 Algee Medics and Fire for services rendered.    173  - 

 -   1 873 33.13 Superway construction for services rendered.   1 873  - 

 -    300 33.14 Unlawful arrest and detention by MI Masolane.    300  - 

 -    150 33.15 Unlawful arrest by ME Mlungisi.    150  - 

 -   1 000 33.16 Compliance to oral agreement by Stefanutti Stocks 
Geotechnical (Pty)Ltd.

  1 000  - 

 -    757 33.17 Fidelity Security Services (Pty)Ltd for services rendered.    757  - 

 -   8 552 33.18 National Force Security CC for services rendered.   8 552  - 

 -    100 33.19 Transportation and Traffic Technology Africa for professional 
services rendered.

   100  - 

 -    305 33.20 TLL Trust for rental due.    305  - 

 -   9 096 33.21 Sbahle Safety consultants for services rendered.   9 096  - 

 -    343 33.22 Be My Guest Trading for services rendered.    343  - 

 -   3 043 33.23 HJ Theunissen and Others for damages arising from injuries 
sustained as a result of alleged assault.

  3 043  - 

  147 455   187 887 33.24 Interest charged to PRASA Rail by Transnet disputed.   187 887   147 455 

 -   61 309 33.25 Potential liability on outstanding PAYE payments.   61 309  - 

 -   14 217 33.26 Interest and penalty on outstanding COIDA payment.   14 217  - 

  311 310   593 588 Total contingent liabilities   593 588   311 310 

34 Other related party transactions
The Group is a Schedule 3B Public Entity in terms of the Public 
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999). It therefore 
has a significant number of related  parties, including other 
State-owned entities, Government departments and all other 
entities within the national sphere of Government. The Group 
used the database maintained by National Treasury to identify 
related parties. A list of all related parties is available on the 
National Treasury website at www.treasury.gov.za.

The Company has a related party relationship with its 
subsidiaries, Autopax and Intersite, as well as with its directors 
and senior executives (key management). Refer note 8 for 
related party transactions with subsidiaries and note 26 for 
related party transactions with key management.

All transactions with the above related parties are concluded 
on an arm's length basis.
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

  2 555  - 33.8 Snow Consulting Engineers for services rendered.  -   2 555 

  9 000   40 589 33.9 Proconse Consulting Engineers for services rendered.   40 589   9 000 

  77 157   79 216 33.10 Various insurance claims for personal injuries as well as legal 
and other matters which may result in a possible loss in future.

  79 216   77 157 

 -   2 692 33.11 Africa International (Pty)Ltd - utility and insurance charges 
paid on behalf of Rail.

  2 692  - 

 -    173 33.12 Algee Medics and Fire for services rendered.    173  - 

 -   1 873 33.13 Superway construction for services rendered.   1 873  - 

 -    300 33.14 Unlawful arrest and detention by MI Masolane.    300  - 

 -    150 33.15 Unlawful arrest by ME Mlungisi.    150  - 

 -   1 000 33.16 Compliance to oral agreement by Stefanutti Stocks 
Geotechnical (Pty)Ltd.

  1 000  - 

 -    757 33.17 Fidelity Security Services (Pty)Ltd for services rendered.    757  - 

 -   8 552 33.18 National Force Security CC for services rendered.   8 552  - 

 -    100 33.19 Transportation and Traffic Technology Africa for professional 
services rendered.

   100  - 

 -    305 33.20 TLL Trust for rental due.    305  - 

 -   9 096 33.21 Sbahle Safety consultants for services rendered.   9 096  - 

 -    343 33.22 Be My Guest Trading for services rendered.    343  - 

 -   3 043 33.23 HJ Theunissen and Others for damages arising from injuries 
sustained as a result of alleged assault.

  3 043  - 

  147 455   187 887 33.24 Interest charged to PRASA Rail by Transnet disputed.   187 887   147 455 

 -   61 309 33.25 Potential liability on outstanding PAYE payments.   61 309  - 

 -   14 217 33.26 Interest and penalty on outstanding COIDA payment.   14 217  - 

  311 310   593 588 Total contingent liabilities   593 588   311 310 

34 Other related party transactions
The Group is a Schedule 3B Public Entity in terms of the Public 
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999). It therefore 
has a significant number of related  parties, including other 
State-owned entities, Government departments and all other 
entities within the national sphere of Government. The Group 
used the database maintained by National Treasury to identify 
related parties. A list of all related parties is available on the 
National Treasury website at www.treasury.gov.za.

The Company has a related party relationship with its 
subsidiaries, Autopax and Intersite, as well as with its directors 
and senior executives (key management). Refer note 8 for 
related party transactions with subsidiaries and note 26 for 
related party transactions with key management.

All transactions with the above related parties are concluded 
on an arm's length basis.
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ENTITY  GROUP

2012
R'000 

2013
R'000 

2013
R'000 

R'00 2012
R’000

Transactions with related entities
Services rendered to related parties comprise principally 
transportation (rail and road) services. Services purchased 
from related parties comprised principally energy, 
telecommunications, information technology, transportation 
and property related services.

The following is a summary of transactions with related parties 
during the year and balances due at year-end:
Services rendered to related parties

  102 988   174 571 Major Public entities 193 048   117 429 
 -  - Other Public entities -  - 

  102 988   174 571   193 048   117 429 

Services received from related parties

 2 208 734  2 481 960 Major Public entities  2 496 153  2 226 375 
  513 690   558 164 Other Public entities   604 961   524 735 

 2 722 424  3 040 124  3 101 114  2 751 110 

Amounts due to related parties

 ( 720 619)  ( 987 130) Major Public entities  ( 985 463)  ( 716 300)
 ( 39 064)  ( 42 869) Other Public entities  ( 47 486)  ( 41 826)

 ( 759 683)  (1 029 999)  (1 032 949)  ( 758 126)

35 Risk disclosure

35.1 Financial risk management

35.1.1 Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default 
on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the 
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with 
creditworthy parties.

The Group performs ITC checks on tenants before contracts 
are entered into. Tenants are required to pay deposits, provide 
guarantees or sureties based on their risk profile.

Financial assets, which potentially subject the Group to credit 
risk, consist principally of cash and cash equivalents,  loans 
and receivables and trade and other receivables.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with high 
credit quality financial institutions.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables 
are limited either because debtors are other Government 
entities or due to the Group’s large number of tenants under 
operating lease agreements.  Where relevant, the Group has 
policies in place to ensure that transactions only take place 
with customers with an appropriate credit history.
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35.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk with regards to loans and 
receivables are limited due to collateral held.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial 
statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the 
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into 
account the value of any collateral obtained:

  80 876   153 409 Trade receivables   120 243   91 400 
  67 174   100 067 Tenant debtors   100 067   67 174 
  38 507   25 057 Rental income receivables   25 057   38 507 
  14 443   21 663 Other receivables   33 703   24 729 

  201 000   300 196   279 070   221 810 
 ( 44 512)  ( 70 726) Less impairment losses  ( 74 615)  ( 48 629)

  156 488   229 470   204 455   173 181 
   161    461 Prepayments not at risk   10 015   11 380 

  156 649   229 931   214 470   184 561 

Tenant receivables comprise of hawkers, residential and 
commercial tenants in the following percentages:

0.4% 1.5% Hawkers 1.5% 0.4%
6.0% 8.9% Residential 8.9% 6.0%

93.6% 89.6% Commercial 89.6% 93.6%

100% 100% 100.0% 100%

Commercial tenants are deemed to be low risk compared to 
residential tenants, however during last three years we have 
been  negatively impacted due to poor economic conditions in 
the property market.

There has been no significant change during the financial 
year, or since the end of the financial year, to the Group's 
exposure to credit risk. The approach to the measurement has 
remained constant for the current and prior year in line with 
the objectives, policies and procedures for managing this risk.

35.1.3 Collateral 
For all tenant receivables collateral is held in the form of tenant 
deposits, guarantees or sureties based on the risk profile of the 
respective tenant. 

35.1.4 Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
The following represents information on the credit quality of 
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired:

The tenant trade receivables are tenants who have entered into 
rental contracts. All tenants prepay amounts. Therefore, if a 
tenant has not paid, the amount is past due. 
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35.1.5 Aged analysis of financial assets that are past due but not 
impaired

Trade receivables
   295    873 1 to 30 days past due   2 093    590 
   401    583 31 to 60 days past due   3 969    529 

  46 763   40 532 61 to 90 days and over past due   52 487   49 524 

  47 459   41 988 Total   58 549   50 643 

Tenant trade receivables
  3 781 3 398 1 to 30 days past due 3 398   3 781 
  2 916 11 355 31 to 60 days past due 11 355   2 916 

  16 535 20 826 61 to 90 days and over past due 20 826   16 535 

  23 232   35 579 Total   35 579   23 232 

All of the Group's trade and other receivables have been 
reviewed for indicators of impairment. Certain trade receivables 
were found to be impaired and an allowance of R74.6 million 
(2012:  R48.6 million) has been recorded accordingly. 

35.2 Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet 
its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group maintains sufficient cash resources and receives 
substantial cash allocations from Government on a monthly 
basis, in order to act as an agent for Government in the 
provision of rail commuter services. The Group manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments 
and credit facilities.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as 
far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses of risking 
damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group receives a guaranteed subsidy from National 
Treasury through the Medium Term Expenditure Framework 
allocation process to meet all current and future obligations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual 
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table have been drawn 
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities 
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required 
to pay. The table includes both estimated interest and principal 
cash flows.

35.2.1 Maturity analysis

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables
 2 035 486  4 381 778 1 to 6 months  4 402 902  2 116 800 

  55 404   97 911 7 to 12 months   97 911   55 404 

 2 090 890  4 479 689 Carrying amount  4 500 813  2 172 204 
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Interesting bearing borrowings (INCAS)

  8 590   5 759 1 to 6 months   5 759   8 590 
  6 249  - 7 to 12 months  -   6 249 
  5 759  - more than 12 months  -   5 759 

  20 598   5 759 Carrying amount   5 759   20 598 

Mercedes-Benz Financial Services S.A. (Pty) Ltd

1 to 6 months   19 757   27 806
7 to 12 months 20 736 28 837

 -  - more than 12 months 92 759 207 701

 -  - Carrying amount   133 252 264 344

 -  - Market risk disclosures

 -  - 35.3.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates.
The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk through the 
INCA loans and Mercedes Benz loans. These loans are at fixed 
interest rates over a fixed term and not revalued at year-end. 
Therefore, a change in interest rate would not affect profit or 
loss.

35.4 Capital management
The Group’s capital consists of share capital; annually we 
receive capital and operational subsidy. Capital subsidy is 
accounted for in terms of IAS 20 'Accounting for government 
grants and disclosure of government assistance'.
Neither the Group nor its subsidiaries are subject to externally 
imposed capital requirements.

35.5 Categories of financial instruments

Loans and receivables

156 649 229 931 Trade and other receivables 214 470 184 561
3 520 722 4 913 116 Cash and cash equivalents 4 986 468 3 570 681

3 677 371 5 143 047 Carrying amount 5 200 938 3 755 242

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2 386 546 4 785 580 Accounts payable 4 823 526 2 487 934
- - Other financial liabilities 133 252 264 344

20 598 5 759 Discounted lease arrangements 5 759 20 598

2 407 144 4 791 339 Carrying amount 4 962 537 2 772 876

Due to nature of financial instruments the carrying amount 
approximates the fair value amount.
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36 Post balance sheet events

There are no matters to report on.

37 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

  4 847   6 319 Interest and penalties on late payments of creditors accounts.   8 347   5 000 

38 Irregular expenditure

 -   10 292 Opening balance   43 145   17 346 
Add: irregular expenditure current year

3 984 17 234 Non- compliance with SCM Policies 32 348 6 339
 6 000  - Non- compliance to CIDB  -  6 000 

 -  - Elapsed contracts continued month to month at Autopax 1 307  13 152 
 308  - Acting allowance paid more than 3 months without proper 

authorisation
 -  308 

10 292 27 526 76 800 43 145
 -  - Less: amounts condoned 49 274  - 

  10 292   27 526   27 526   43 145 

39 Standards and interpretations
At the date of authorisation of the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2013, the following standards and 
interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:

STANDARD INTERPRETATION COMMENCEMENT DATE

IAS 1 Presentation on Financial Statements - comparative 
information Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - recognition and 
classification of servicing equipment. Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IAS 19 (Revised) Employee benefits -current and future obligations 
resulting from provision of defined benefit plans. Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013; 
as well as 1 January 2014

IAS 28 Investments in Associates Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IAS 32 Financial Instruments (Presentation) Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 7 (AC 144) amendment Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 9  (AC 146) Financial Instruments Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2015

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 12 Disclosures – Interest in Other Entities Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement Annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013

Management is in process of assessing impact of new financial standards on the Group.
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ADMINISTRATION

Physical Address Postal address Telephone
PRASA House Private Bag x101 (012) 748-7000
1040 Burnett Street Braamfontein
Hatfield  2017
Pretoria

Website

www.prasa.com

Physical Address Postal address
Corner Simmonds Private Bag 32281
and Leyd Streets Braamfontein
Braamfontien  2017
2017

Website and e-mail addresses

Shosholoza Meyl:
www.shosholozameyl.co.za
info@shosholozameyl.co.za

Premier Classe:
www.premierclasse.co.za
infopremierclasse@prasa.com

Metrorail:
www.metrorail.co.za

PRASA

PRASA RAIL (Metrorail, Shosholoza Meyl, Premier Classe)
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Physical Address Postal address 
113 First Street P O Box 1907
Salvokop Pretoria
Pretoria  0001
Pretoria

Website

www.autopax.co.za

Physical Address Postal address
Primegro Office Park P O Box 999
1st Floor Sunninghill
Boundary Place  2157
18 Rivonia Road, Illovo
Gauteng, South Africa

Website and e-mail address

www.intersite.co.za
marketing@intersite.co.za

CENTRAL RESERVATIONS NUMBER
086 000 8883

INFORMATION DESK
011 773 3139 / 011 773 3063

PRASA RAIL HEAD OFFICE RECEPTION
011 773 7463

AUTOPAX (Translux and City to City)

INTERSITE
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